II.

II1.

IV.

AGENDA
PUBLIC HEARING
RICHLANDS TOWN COUNCIL/
RICHLANDS PLANNING COMMISSION
At the Richlands Town Hall
November 9, 2021
5:15 P.M.

Call Hearing to Order

Public Comment regarding the conditional use application
submitted by Bad Axery, LLC for the property located at 1217
Front Street.

Receive Public Comment

Close Public Comment Period

Adjourn Public Hearing






I1.

111

1V.

VL

VIIL.

VIIIL

IX.

X.

XL

AGENDA
TOWN COUNCIL MEETING
At Richlands Town Hall
November 9, 2021
6:00 P.M.

Call the Meeting to Order
Invocation
Pledge of Allegiance

Additions/Deletions to Agenda
(This includes the removal/transfer of any Consent Agenda items to the Regular Agenda that need full discussion.)

a. Approval of Agenda

Approval of Minutes
a. October 12 — Public Hearing, October 12 — Regular Council Meeting

Consent Agenda
a. Authorization to Pay Bills (September)

Scheduled Public Comments (Five Minute Maximum)
a. Laura Mollo- Revitalization Grant

Unscheduled Public Comments (Three Minute Maximum)

Charter, Public Comment, and ARPA Workshop (Reschedule)
Junior Firefighters Program Ordinance (Second Reading)

Agenda Items
a. Electric PCA Discussion
b. Planning Commission Member Update
c. IDA Member Update
d. ZBA Member Update
e. Blue Ridge Power- Appointment of Alternate Director
f. Greenspace Update
g.
h.

Town Manager Report:
a. Miscellaneous

Attorney Comments:
a. Foreclosure Update



XII.

XIIIL.

XIV.

XV.

XVL

Council Member Reports (Non-voting Items):

a. Richard Brown
b. Doug Ratliff

¢. Mary Ann Strong
d. Jeff Hurst

e. Mike Street

f. Logan Plaster

Mayor’s Comments:
Executive/Closed Session Pursuant to VA Code Section:
a. 2.2-3711(A) (29) — Contract Negotiations (Jonah Project, Property
Acquisition)

Return to Open Session, Certification, Report on Action

Adjourn/ Recess Meeting

Next regular meeting date is December 14, 2021, at 6:00 pm



The Richlands Town Council held a “Public Hearing” in the Richlands Council Chambers on October 12,
2021, at 5:30 pm, with the following present:

Mayor: Rodney D. Cury

Town Manager: John O’Daniel

Town Clerk: Connie Allen

Council Members: Mary Ann Strong, Jeff Hurst, Mike Street, Doug Ratliff
Richard Brown, Logan Plaster

Town Attorney : Bob Altizer

Mayor Cury opened the meeting.

Mayor Cury — Solicit Public Comments —To receive input on the American Rescue Plan Act (ARPA)
Funding of $5,430,362.00 which is over 1% of the total current budget.

Mayor Cury — Grace Stuart, Laura Mollo, Mike Bandy, Rocky Hill, Kevin Hamilton

Grace Stuart — Richlands — | realize | may be tilting at windmills, but here goes. For $5.4 million dollars
there are a lot of things you can do. Parks and Recreation should not be just parks, sports and kids or a
brand-new soccer field. Recreation includes dancing, yoga, ping-pong, cards, crafts, board games,
singing and much more, yet this type of recreation is not found in our park system. When we were
looking for a home in the area, we were told that Tazewell County is becoming a retirement destination,
but why would seniors want to relocate here if there is nothing to keep them active and engaged except
maybe pickle ball. Do you realize that Parks and Recreation primarily caters to ages 5 to 24, 22% of the
population but those from ages 55 to 74 is 27% but what is available for them? | am not talking about
seniors who require or need services from AASC. If you can spend a million dollars on a new soccer
field, | think you can spend a lot less creating an Active Senior Recreation Center which can be used
year-round. It may help define the purpose of the center. Itis to provide programs and activities that
will help to keep seniors energetic and stimulated. It can provide contact with others through all sorts
of clubs and activities which can be mentally, physically and intellectually stimulating which helps to
keep seniors independent, self-sufficient and self-reliant. Another benefit is that of socialization. Today
nearly 11,000 Senior Centers serve one (1) million older adults aged 50 plus every day. Baby boomers
want to remain active both physically and in community life. Age 60 is the new 40; promoting active
living can make neighborhoods more livable for all ages and reduce costs associated with social services
and health care. An active Senior Recreation Center could bring in seniors from the surrounding areas,
which could have a positive economic impact. There are many empty buildings on Front Street which
could either be bought or rented for such a Center. Occupying one of these buildings could help to
revitalize the heart of Richlands. For example, the Pawn Shop next to the Section House would be an
ideal location and it even has available parking. The Center should be open five (5) days a week from
8:00am to 5:00pm. After 5:00pm and on weekends, the building can be used and or rented for other
purposes which would help to defray costs. In conclusion, | believe there is a strong need to fill a gaping
hole in Richlands. By the year 2030, the number of adults in the US over the age of 65 will double and
make up 20% of the population; Richlands has already exceeded 22%. This emphasizes the need for an
active Senior Recreation Center. Our Town government should not be SELF-SERVING but COMMUNITY-
SERVING.



Mayor Cury - Receive Public Comments — Laura Mollo

Laura Mollo - 262 Linwood Drive ~First | would like to address the fact this Public Hearing wasn't
advertised with the proper notice according to VA Code 15.2-2507. This publication was made on
October 6, making the notice only (6) six days prior to the hearing date. This code does require public
hearing for this matter. It states: “any such amendment which exceeds one percent of the total
expenditures shown in the currently adopted budget must be accomplished by publishing a notice of a
meeting and a public hearing once in a newspaper having a general circulation in that locality at least
seven (7) days prior to the meeting date. The notice shall state the governing body’s intent to amend
the budget and include a brief synopsis of the proposed budget amendment” As this money does
exceed 1% of the budget, a public hearing is required as is the printing of a brief synopsis. We're talking
about millions of dollars that is being rushed through without proper notice and opportunity for citizen
input. Now, regarding the money itself. | think we’re on the right track. Drainage issues and the Water
Treatment Plant are priorities and | appreciate them being treated as such. The one thing | disagree with
is the million dollars toward the Rec Park improvements. We have other areas in Town that desperately
need attention, like the flooding issues in Lake Park, Hidden Valley, Brown Street and Iron Street
specifically. Even when the rest of the Town doesn’t completely flood, those homes are being destroyed
by pooling water. The Town cut a ditch for a citizen in Hidden Valley to prevent the pooling of water in a
driveway. So that obviously is the Town's responsibility. We have to help those other citizens who are
reaching out. Lake Park also needs their drains cleaned as some are now growing trees. This creates a
huge back flow of water when we have heavy rains which is a danger to the citizens, especially the
children. They’re also in need of curbs on the higher streets of the neighborhood with the big hills. The
Rec Park obviously needs upgrades and I'm not saying it doesn’t. Why not compromise and give some
to the Rec Park instead of the entire amount? If we are still dead set on the Rec Park, the upgrades
should be those that benefit more citizens. A computer lab, art center, music center, rock climbing wall
but not just an artificial turf soccer field which only benefits a few. This idea was proposed in 2017 by
the Head of the Soccer Association where the cost was estimated at almost $700,000. Now that person
sits on the Council and has brought this up for discussion. | would ask that person to abstain from
further conversations or votes regarding a soccer field as this poses a conflict of interest. It's time we
stop looking at a small sector of Richlands and start seeing every citizen as important as the next. This
money gives us the opportunity to do something great in Richlands, to start something that benefits
every citizen equally and protects homes and neighborhoods or to do something that brings actual
revenue into Town. Please consider this carefully before making a decision, and | am also asking you to
hold another properly notified public hearing.

Mayor Cury — Mike Bandy

Mike Bandy — | live in Pounding Mill, but my business is at 113 Tazewell Avenue, Richlands. | believe in
upgrading our soccer field to a turf field which will allow us to serve even more kids. Before Covid hit we
served 250/260 kids per year and their families. This allows kids from broken homes, some for single
parent homes and from regular homes. All get involved even if it is just the kids showing up to get on
the field, parents coach and take part in practice. Parents help elevate our kids to a higher

2



understanding of teamwork, leadership and character. To me that investment in the kids is going to
allow us to again help some kids that come from different situations, we can say hey someone cares
about me, thru a sport thru a team, thru an activity. The ball is just a tool, soccer reaches kids worldwide
it is universally understood. But in our area for some kids sometimes that is the best family contact that
they have, that means a lot to me, | believe the turf field not only serves soccer it can serve softball as
well and any other sports that we bring in. The kids that we teach character, leadership and encourage
to do well in their education they are going to be taxpayers one day, stay in Richlands and bring those
skills and the things they did when they were kids, it is going to help them become the citizens that we
need. Yes, | am in favor the Soccer Field and | would like to see the Town consider that please.

Mayor Cury — Rocky Hill

Rocky Hill — Co-founder and owner of Gods Rock Stars, | live in Pounding Mill, VA, | hate to say that
because | have lived in Richlands my whole life; | am Richlands thru and thru. | am here to speak, and |
need some interaction here tonight, if you could spend one (1) million dollars and be honest to save
your child’s life or your grand kids’ life raise your hand, be honest. Now | am going to give you a history
lesson and a story. | grew up in Red Ash it is a poor place, and it still is but | love it and | am honored to
come from there. If it had not been for the Richlands Rec Park, me as a child, | promise you | would not
be standing in front of you today. What you don’t understand is when we use to charge 75 cents to get
into the Rec Park | would go in my daddy’s truck and | would try to find three (3) quarters, so | could go
on Tuesday/Thursday nights at 5:30pm and on Saturday morning you could get there at 8:00am you
could beat the tennis players before they got there and took over at 12:00pm. That was a big part of my
life it was the only part of my life. We didn’t have soccer back then; we had baseball but not a true
basketball. We played at the Raven Elementary School. The Rec Park was a big part of my life, and it
saved my life. | want to say that it saved my life. If it can save one life it is all worth it. I will tell you why
it is worth it, | am not bragging on myself, Richlands has helped Hurley to no end. We have changed
Hurley thru this flood; | have been a huge part of that. We could not have done that if we didn’t have
the Richlands Rec Park because Rocky would not have been here. | would have not made it. What
people don’t understand not all kids get to play High School sports? My son does not play High School
sports, but he loves playing at the Rec Park. Another thing | cringe when | hear people say let’s do away
with the Rec Park or move it or let’s do this or that. | can remember going down there on nights when
we had ping pong table in the back and the ping pong paddle didn’t have foam on it, we didn’t care we
could have cared less. Dave Ascue gives us what he had, and we went back there and played. | heard
someone in a meeting the other night talk about cracked chairs that just gives you scars for you think
about and to remember about the Rec Park. We don’t worry about cracked chairs we want to change
lives. That is how you change it you give a kid a ball | am not just saying soccer ball or basketball any kind
of ball. I can give you names like Ramsey Cury, Ryan Altizer, Brandon Buskill | could go on and on and
Myra Stevenson that grew up on that tennis court; | am not the only person that that Rec Park changed
their lives. | love going in there and seeing Tommy Sargent, Tommy is back now teaching in Richlands if |
am not mistaken. She ran the Rec Park and took our money for 25 years, old man Bill, hateful as all get
out, but I miss Bill. 1don’t know if you know Skip with the googles, he used to walk around and get in
our way in basketball, we loved Skip. | could go on and on, Craig Hunsucker. |1 am going to give you some

3



more history, Luke Peery, | was on the bank with my dad playing ball when | see Luke Peery hit a
baseball and went to the swimming pool. That is amazing. Luke Peery was one of the greatest coaches
in Southwest Virginia, Tommy Keene coaches at Tazewell right now watched him play a thousand games
at the Rec Park. | could go on and on with great names. To get this multi sports complex is huge it could
save a life. If it saves one and it is a chain reaction it will change hundreds. Think about it, it is very
important to this community. We don’t need to move it or rebuild it just make it better, it that is on turf
field softball field or whatever let’s do this, and make it happen. The kids depend upon us.

Mayor Cury - | want to apologize for being late that is what is running the meeting behind | will take full
responsibility for that.

Mayor Cury — Kevin Hamilton

Kevin Hamilton — 414 Buchanan Street — | watched the last Town Council meeting on the budget of the
5.4 million dollars to spend at the Council’s will, | guess. After hearing the meeting, | went over the Rec
Park the next day and looked around and saw some issues that needs taken care of. One of the main
concerns they are wanting to put in a soccer field, | am not opposed | think it is awesome idea. Every
great idea is not always the best idea. You can put a million-dollar field over there but then you are still
going to have a parking issue. There is nowhere to park; you crammed all these parents and kids in one
area. Itis inconvenient and unsafe to be honest with you. At Critterville, | looked over there and there
are several things. |looked at every dugout and took pictures, every dugout is cracked. The mortar and
brick are cracked. The press box is cracked; one is cracked all the way from the top to the bottom. | feel
like those are issues and we should use of the money to fix the things that are wrong. Whatever we have
left start building off that. That is my main concern, because safety. The playground has looked horrible
for years, | am kind of afraid to take my kids over there | don’t know if something is going to break or get
tetanus. It is bad over there | don’t know if you have looked over there or not. | think some of the funds
should go for recreation but for the right thing. | think we need to look at our neighboring Towns like
Lebanon and Tazewell. Tazewell is doing great I think they have a new walking trail opening real soon.
Lebanon has a Splash Pad at no charge. My kids went there this summer and had a great time. | love it.

| would love to see something like that come here. Bring families and communities together. Businesses
around here stay open for a little while, a little cupcake shop opens yes their prices may be a little bit
steep but if people would just think, go spend your money at those places and help those local
businesses. It is honestly the community’s fault that these businesses don’t succeed. If you are not going
to go spend money there, they are not going to be able to stay in business. | would like to see some of
those funds to go for things like that.

Mayor Cury - We have heard all the public comments, all spoke with heart and all exceed five (5)
minutes; thank you Brian for alerting me but | tried not to call anyone because it is something | did not
do. With all due respect to our citizens is there anyone who did not sign up how would like to have five
(5) minutes?

Mayor Cury - Mr. Earls please come to the podium.



Craig Earls — 311 Linwood Drive- | currently serve on the Recreation Commission although | am not
speaking on behalf of the Recreation Commission | am speaking as a citizen. | first want to thank you for
the opportunity for having the public hearing this is very important for our Town. This is a turning point
you don’t get this kind of money very often and | think everyone had lots of great ideas. | have been
around this kind of project for a while and the planning that has gone into it this multi-use facility is very
important to the community. Not only for the use of the field itself but there are other improvements to
that property, particular around safety that | feel like should be included in that. Parking is one of the
issues and also lighting at the Rec Park, especially in the evenings. Those are very important
infrastructure that should be included along with a Splash Pad. We have had some investments in other
items over there and maybe some grant opportunities, someone gets a grant or matching grant and
things like that could cut some cost. The infrastructure is as important as well. The Pizza Hut work and
the work on Iron Street that we have been trying to get fixed for a while | don’t think it is fair to some of
the citizens to not fix some of those items. | think it is balancing what we have here, and all continue to
be priorities and we have put you here to make these very important decisions and the best interest of
the Town. | take my kids to tournaments all over the place and spend a lot of funds in other counties.
This is an economic driver for us being able to have a field like this for soccer, football, softball, and
God’s Rock Stars and whatever is over there it is important to the community, but it is a balancing act. |
think grants can come in to help offset some of the cost and 1 will help with whatever | can to help get
the grants and any type of help that | might be able to do. Again, | think safety issue and infrastructure
like Iron Street, Pizza Hut and all these things are very important. Thank you for able to speak about this
project | hope you proceed with it; it is very important to our citizens and thank you for the time.

Mayor Cury — Rocky are you wanting to speak again. You are limited to three (3) minutes.

Rocky — I spoke from my heart the first time now | want to speak from my business side. God’s Rock
Stars is a special needs program. We have people from Hurley, Lebanon, St. Paul, Castlewood and
Richlands; | could go on and on. This is a growing organization for our special needs kids. It is an
amazing opportunity; | spoke to people about the multipurpose complex we are willing to partner up
with the Town. | am trying to find a place to build a field; | already have materials and money. | will
promise you on a handshake deal right here God’s Rock Stars will partner with anybody that will make
this happen so we could build the road down as we can access to the handicap, and we can update the
parking lots. Me and my God’s Rock Stars we can get a few more grants than the Town can get, and
other people can get. We have a handicap update. | will partner with you guys whoever is on this, and
we will do this, OK. | just wanted to tell you that. Thank You.

Mayor Cury — Anyone else who would like to speak?

Amity Layne — | live in Belfast, but | have spent my whole life for the most part in Richlands on Tank Hill
and | am a graduate from Richlands High School. | do a lot of volunteer work in Richlands. A lot of my
volunteer work is with the Friends of Tazewell County Library. My heart is with the Richlands Library.
The Richlands Library is falling apart we have had some money and grant money to give a face lift the

5



structure damages that need to be repaired. It has not yet been done. | am hoping with this new money
that has come in maybe we can finally see it started. Thank you.

Mayor Cury - Anyone else?

Morgan Erp — 1618 6" Street — First | am going to say yes, we need to give money to the Richlands
Library | think that is top of the list. The second idea a Laser Tag Arena | think that would be appeasing
to the Town. Just saying everyone can participate something different and someone as big as myself
could participate in an arena like that, that is something to consider.

Mayor Cury - Anyone else who would like to speak? If no one else is going to speak | will have a motion
to close the Public Hearing.

Richard - | will make the motion, Mary Ann seconded the motion.
Mayor Cury- We have a motion and a second, any further discussion? All those in favor of the motion

say yes. All those that oppose say no, Motion carries — 6/0. Unanimous vote

Mayor Cury - | apologize to member of the Council, Attorney and the Public we went over a little bit but
it was well worth it.

Mayor Cury - Adjourned Public Hearing - Regular Council Meeting in five (5) minutes

Rodney D. Cury, Mayor

Connie Allen, Town Clerk



The Richlands Town Council held a regular monthly meeting in the Richlands Council Chambers on
October 12, 2021, at 6:00 pm with the following present:

Mayor: Rod D. Cury

Town Manager: John O'Daniel

Town Clerk: Connie Allen

Council Members: Mary Ann Strong, Doug Ratliff, Jeff Hurst
Mike Street, Richard Brown, Logan Plaster

Town Attorney: Bob Altizer

Mayor Cury opened the meeting.
Mayor Cury gave the invocation and led the Pledge of Allegiance.
Mayor Cury — Do we have any additions/deletions/corrections to the agenda?

Mayor Cury - “Scheduled Public Comments” add Grace Stuart to the agenda. She had called prior to the
meeting so she will go under the five (5) minute comments. The people signing up are Keith Jahnke
under “Unscheduled Public Comments”. Anybody else who would like to speak on “Unscheduled Public
Comments” but has not come forward. Add Craig Earls to the agenda.

John - Under “Consent Agenda” under “b” Drawdown Number #12 should be #14 and under the agenda
items “Greenspace Update” should also be a Resolution. Under Closed Session Attorney Client Privilege,
I don’t have the numbers but will have by the time we get to closed session.

Jeff — I make the motion to approve the agenda as amended, Mike seconded the motion.
Mayor Cury- We have a motion and a second, any further discussion? All those in favor of the motion
say yes. All those that oppose say no. Roll Call -Doug- Yes, Jeff- Yes, Logan- Yes Richard-Yes, Mike — Yes,

Mary Ann - Yes Motion carries — 6/0.

Mayor Cury — Approval of Minutes — September 14 — Public Hearing, September 14- Regular Council
Meeting, September 27- Workshop.

Mary Ann - | don’t have any corrections or deletions to the minutes but would like to complement our
Clerk, Connie Allen, this is 47 pages long a lot of time and effort.

Mary Ann - | make a motion to approve the minutes for Public Hearing on September 14, Regular
Meeting on September 14 and September 27 our Workshop, Jeff seconded the motion.



Mayor Cury- We have a motion and a second, any further discussion? All those in favor of the motion
say yes. All those that oppose say no. Roll Call -Doug- Yes, Jeff- Yes, Logan- Yes Richard-Yes, Mike — Yes,
Mary Ann —Yes Motion carries — 6/0.

Mayor Cury — Authorization to Pay Bills (September)

Mike - | make the motion to authorize the Town Manager to pay the bills, Mary Ann seconded the
motion.

Mayor Cury- We have a motion and a second, any further discussion? All those in favor of the motion
say yes. All those that oppose say no. Roll Call -Doug- Yes, Jeff- Yes, Logan- Yes Richard-Yes, Mike — Yes,
Mary Ann —Yes Motion carries — 6/0.

Mayor Cury — Authorize Line of Credit drawdown Number #14 from National Bank for Wastewater
Treatment Plan Rehabilitation Project ($727.96) and Water Treatment Plant Upgrades and
Improvements ($43,745.67) cost for September bill for a total of $44,473.63.

Mike - I make the motion to authorize Line of Credit drawdown Number #14, Jeff seconded the motion.

Mayor Cury- We have a motion and a second, any further discussion? All those in favor of the motion
say yes. All those that oppose say no. Roll Call -Doug- Yes, Jeff- Yes, Logan- Yes Richard-Yes, Mike — Yes,
Mary Ann —Yes Motion carries — 6/0.

Mayor Cury — “Scheduled Public Comments” — Kenneth Boyd

Kenneth Boyd — | have a small piece of property under the code EO7 power consumption right now,
makes me commercial or high demand usage. | am asking to be changed to EO5. Under the Articles B2
contract I am not a commercial business at all and | do not have a commercial license, it is just a private
entrance and | have copies of the plan and also copies from Tazewell where it was recorded as
residential property. It has always been that way. | am sure it is just an oversight of some kind | would
like to get it switched back to the EO5 plan and ask the extra | have paid be credited back to my bill.

Mayor Cury - A few questions, you live at 208 Burnette Street, is that a B2 or a R2 zone? Is it residential?
Kenneth Boy - It is Residential.

Mayor Cury - So it is R2, | think the Town Manager maybe could add something | don’t know.

John — It is something we looked at with staff and it is our interpretation that it should be a demand

meter but that is as far as the staff could go. Anything differently | would like to have the discussion
with Council.



Mike — What was the determination as why it should be on a demand meter?

John — When we looked at the property to me it felt like more commercial and not with a residential
home. Itis not a house and a garage it is just a garage on a partial by itself. It has had a demand meter
for quite a while so; the staff felt like it had the potential to have those peaks. There were two (2)
months where there was excessive usage to the main meter. That is what the additional charges were
and they were added to the bill.

Mike - So he is using enough power to be on the demand?

John - When it is reassessed and has more peaks he will return back to the demand level.

Mike — How many times did he peak?

John — Twice

Mayor Cury - What was the question?

Mike - How many times did he hit the demand peak?

John — It hit twice in a two (2) month period.

Doug - If it is classified as residential, a demand meter is mostly commercial. He does not have a
business license and not doing anything commercial. | think his wife uses as storage. 1 don’t see how it
can be classified as a demand meter. That means any house in Richlands could be demand.

Kenneth Boyd - This is a private driveway and has no access to public

Mayor Cury — | have another question, do you have a business license?

Kenneth Boyd — No sir.

Mayor Cury - Are you operating a business in a residential zone? You are not making money there?
Kenneth Boyd — No sir it is strictly private for my use. | have no business license and do no business at
that property. The two (2) months that | did go over it was less than 4 amps. | just installed a new heat
pump. When they put itin, it was Jan/Feb the temperatures were low the demand went on at 30
degrees they wanted to run up to 80 degrees it say on about 15 minutes. | have never since | have

owned the property had an issue like this.

Mike -~ How long have you owned the property?



Kenneth Boyd — Over 11 years.

Mike — So nothing has changed until the heat pump.

Kenneth Boyd - That is correct.

Mary Ann - In our conversations you mentioned that the garage was built in 1987.

Kenneth Boyd - It has been there and deeded since 1987 as residential and it always has been. It was
built by the Kinders in Tazewell; | got copies of the plat and the residential listing. | have never had a
business licenses or anything to that nature. If we are going by what Tazewell County tells us, it is

residential and always been residential | should not be listed on the EO7.

Mayor Cury — Mary Ann have you been up there to see his operation? Did you get the same feeling that
John did?

Mary Ann — | have and it is a little hard to find, on gravel road, when you get up there it does give you
the feel of commercial on the way that it looks because it is a big metal building and had a lot of really
old cars around it. | trust you but if a person didn’t know and was out driving around.

Kenneth Boyd - There is no signage, | don’t even meet the height requirement and | don’t have a back
entrance. There is only one way in and one way out. The reason | got this when we moved to Hidden
Valley you was not allowed to build a separate structure outside of your home. | found this building so |
could store things close to the house.

Mayor Cury - Who else did you contact in Council?

Kenneth Boyd - Mary Ann had John and Nathan and then we had conference call, talked several times.
Mayor Cury — What is the will of Council? Do you want to act on it or think about it?

Richard — 1 am familiar with the property, original in 1987 when it was built, it was taken in as part of the
boundary adjustment, mobile homes on the side, and it is difficult to control. Does Council need a

motion to direct the Town to remove the demand meter?

Mayor — | totally understand what you are saying, my only concern that is we do things properly. | don’t
know who changed the meter to a demand meter. | will ask the Attorney’s for direction.

Bob — | don’t know legally.



Mayor Cury — | just want to make sure we are following precedent and not setting precedent, people
come in and get a meter changed. We have ground rules to accommodate if that is the will of Council
and this is where we are headed.

Bob — Who sets the rules?

John — It doesn’t have to be a commercial building. There is not a residential/commercial meter.

Bob — Demand meters you pay more?

John - You actually pay lower.

Bob — Lower rate until you reach a certain point.

Kenneth Boyd - | disagree with that, if you go down on the line billing, line item 4 & 5 town tax,
commercial tax added to the bill to offset. If you are on commercial the fee is called CTC on your bill as
well. You have a demand fee. State tax, Town Tax, commercial fee added to this. Demand meters were
originally set up for more than a 200 amp meter which sets up for 400 amp meters which is a business.
Any household is not going to go over 200 amps and that is what mine is.

Mayor Cury - | have one more question. My biggest concern is that we do the right thing not just for you
but for the future so we don’t have any misunderstanding with other people. How did you get the
demand meter and did they put the demand meter on your garage?

Kenneth Boyd - | have asked but | have not received an answer.

John — It is not anything that was done recently.

Mayor Cury - Has the demand meter been there since 19877

Kenneth Boyd - I didn’t know nothing until | got it on my bill. | didn’t even know what to look for and |
had never noticed it before, it sure could have been.

Mayor Cury - When your bill went up you saw it.

Kenneth Boyd - What makes it really hard for me to take, you are locked in for 12 months at roughly
$150/$160 on top of what you pay normally. That is roughly $2000, | ask do | get my money back it |
don’t get that the answer was “no”. It is that much money and I have a hard time accepting that. | don’t

want to make it worse than it is but that is a lot of money.

Mary Ann - You mentioned 1987 that was when it was built, you purchased around 2008.



Bob — 1 don’t know how all this works. It seems to me that Mr. Boyd should be treated like all the other
citizens in the Town of Richlands and | don’t know what the policy is or what the procedures or
regulations are to determine if it is one kind of meter compared to another kind of meter. | don’t know
what those requirements are.

John - The way | understand it essentially, we don’t have it as a business or not a business.

Mayor Cury — This man is in a residential setting, is it really a decision of Council you used your staff to
decide these things but now Council is put upon to decide it.

Bob - 1 am not sure that Council has sufficient information to make a decision.
Mayor Cury - Members of Council has expressed | think perhaps we have more information.

Doug — Residential is Residential it is not a business. To me if it is residential and you are not carrying on
a business, demand is usually just for a commercial business since you are making profit. The demand is
to cover unusual peaks. He put in a heat pump that is not an unusual peak to take care of.

Doug - | make the motion that we remove Kenneth Boyd from commercial to a residential customer, not
a demand meter he does not deserve that. If anyone comes in here and they are residential and they
are not carrying on a business they deserve the same treatment as every other citizen. | make the
motion that we remove the demand meter and put in a residential meter, Logan seconded the motion.

Mayor Cury - The motion is to remove the demand meter from the garage and put in a residential
meter, | may be saying that wrong but do | have generally right.

Mary Ann - | was going to say | have no idea but it was long before I got on Council we don’t dig in the
weeds for meters anywhere. If a person didn’t know and it was in a residential area but has a
commercial look | can see how a commercial meter got put on it. It was all good until you hit the
demand.

Kenneth Boyd - | am not pointing fingers.

Mary Ann - | know you are not; you have been extremely respectful and patient about the whole thing.
Kenneth Boyd - To me it comes down to the Town has a document what makes you commercial | do not
fall into any of those categories at all. On top of Tazewell County saying | am listed as residential has

been.

Mike - What is the difference in the rates of demand and residential?



Kenneth Boyd — For the EQ7 customer charge of $13.90 per month demand charge of $4.50 a month
and an energy consumption .0895, EO05 residential is very little within a few cents.

Mike — You were charged $13.90 and $4.50.

Kenneth Boyd - It ends up being about three (3) times more.

Doug - You don’t want to be on a demand meter | have several.

Kenneth Boyd - 1 could have accepted it more if they put the heat pump in and | paid that month and
went on but when you are hooked for the twelve (12) months and you don’t get your money back that is
hard for me as a citizen to understand.

Mike - You have the rate for the EO5.

Kenneth Boyd — Very minimal, | have it right here.

Mike - You are looking at a penny and penny and half.

Kenneth Boyd — Yes, it is less but when you add the extra fee or tax on to it makes up the difference on
your bill.

Mike - Looks like if we left you on the demand meter and you only peaked twice in twelve (12) years’
time what is the difference in how much you have saved. | feel like he is on the wrong demand meter

and now not to be the bad guy but to be fair has he paid less than what he was supposed to for 12
years.

Mayor Cury - | doubt it.

Mike — But what if you run into it again? | think we should provide consistency. | don’t see the guy being
commercial | really don’t but we need to get our ducks in a row so it doesn’t happen again.

John - Would it be OK if we get some more information and have on the agenda for next month.

Mayor Cury — We have a motion and second on the floor it depends if they want to withdraw their
motion.

John - If the motion is not resolved is this one time change or is this a policy, if it is a policy that scares
me.

Mayor Cury - That is where | am headed conducting this meeting we need to be very careful it is not
about you but greater than one person setting precedent. | don’t disagree but we need to be very

7



cautious, not against you Mr. Boyd but all the other people we could be effecting and the Town. | hope
you understand where | am coming from.

Kenneth Boyd — Here is my thing | am no different from anybody else if | am residential and | have the
meter then everyone else should have.

Doug - The policy should be if you are residential and you are not making a profit and you don’t have a
business you don’t deserve a demand meter. | am sure if you went to AEP they are not going to pick out
a house and give them a demand meter that is ludicrous. That is your policy Mr. Town manager.

Kenneth Boyd — I did my homework no one else has a demand meter, | even checked in Tazewell,
Honaker and Lebanon.

Mike - | have an idea | don’t think it should be commercial, but | do think we obviously we figured out
we need to be more clear on what that looks like, the ins and outs of what is demand and what is not.
We need to work on this as an opportunity to grow. | am going to ask Council let’s withdraw the motion
and have a consensus that this in fact a residential area and allow the Town Manager to work thru what
these issues are and come back with a better policy and we approve that policy. | think we can have a
consensus and move forward and have the right plan in place for the future. That is all | am saying not
disagreeing with you, it is not commercial either. If we have a consensus saying this is not the way it
should be and do better | think that is the better action.

Mayor Cury - There has been a request to withdraw the motion, Doug how do you feel?

Doug - I am not going to withdraw it , what Mike said we can do that and discuss a policy later but this
man has a problem and | am sure when the policy comes you are residential and not conducting a
business and you are not making money at that residence you don’t get a demand meter. It is fine to
have a policy, but | am not going to withdraw my motion because this guy has a problem and we need to
correct it.

Mayor Cury- We have a motion and a second, any further discussion? All those in favor of the motion
say yes. All those that oppose say no. Roll Call -Doug- Yes, Jeff- Yes, Logan- Yes Richard-Yes, Mike — Yes,
Mary Ann — Yes Motion carries — 6/0.

Mayor Cury - Please consult with the Town Manager on the details.

Mayor Cury- We have a motion and a second, any further discussion? All those in favor of the motion
say yes. All those that oppose say no. Roll Call -Doug- Yes, Jeff- Yes, Logan- Yes Richard-Yes, Mike — Yes,

Mary Ann —Yes Motion carries — 6/0.

Mayor Cury — “Scheduled Public Comments” Laura Mollo



Laura Mollo — 262 Linwood Drive — Before | start, | would like to commend everybody it was refreshing
to see what just happened doing good for the citizens. We should see our Council come together as one
not arguing as we have seen in previous months. First, | want to say that Council should be coming
together as one, not arguing as we see month after month. It doesn’t matter who likes who on this
Council, the focus should be on the citizens and how Council can best serve citizens. It's very
disheartening to watch the back and forth and the disrespect of certain Council members. Personal
feelings, personal agendas, friendships, family, etc. should all be left outside of this room. The focus in
here should be on citizens and progressing Richlands for the good of everyone. We just have seen a
great example of that. Now moving on, | also wanted to bring up another great thing | hope we will
look into. Dolly Parton’s Imagination Library. Per the website, they describe themselves as “Dolly
Parton’s Imagination Library is a book gifting program that mails free, high-quality books to children
from birth to age five, no matter their family’s income. This program would provide every child in
Richlands a new book every single month of their life from birth to age five. There is no income
requirement, no income check, it is available to everyone. It would be eligible for every child in this
Town no matter their income or neighborhood. A parent simply fills out their name, address and
children’s birthdates. We could partner with the hospital to provide the information to every new
parent. We could also provide the information in the school system. Instilling an appreciation for
reading at a young age helps encourage the love of knowledge and education. It helps bolster a sense of
pride in children and encourages parent/child bonding time in reading together. Consistent reading has
also shown to have higher graduation rates. It's important that we find ways to improve the quality of
life in the citizens of Richlands and this is a very simple, low-cost way of doing so. We do need a local
affiliate. If we agree that this is something we are interested in, | suggest reaching out to the Friends of
the Tazewell County Library. They are non-profit organization and would be a perfect fit. Amity Layne
from the Friends is here tonight to show their willingness and support. There is a cost associated with
this. A five-year estimate is provided by the Imagination Library, with year one being just $622 per year.
I can guarantee funding for year one. Year two is $1,497 per year and the highest being year five and
year after at $4,400 per year, assuming we have a 100% participation rate. This is less than the cost of
the health insurance given to Councilmembers which begs the question, which would we rather invest
our money into, 60 new books for every single child in this Town from birth to age 5 or health insurance
for a Councilmember. Guys, the money is here. It's time to start using it wisely and investing into the
things that really matter in Richlands. | believe in the citizens of Richlands enough to invest into them
and I'm asking you to do the same.

Mayor Cury — “Scheduled Public Comments” — Grace Stuart

Grace Stuart - Thank you Mr. Mayor you are one of the best. | have not seen Mayor’s before this but |
like how you do the protocol and your procedures and calmness you try to compromise with everyone
here. There are a lot of negativities on sides so | appreciate you as a Mayor. This is a public meeting I am
not only going to address the Council but the citizens that watch us on You Tube if we compromise, we
can achieve wonders. For the 5.4 million dollars, there are a lot of things you can do. Parks and
Recreation should not be just parks, sports and kids or a new soccer field. 1 am here addressing some of
the needs for the active seniors ages 55 to 75 in the Town. We represent over 27% of the population.

9



And yet, the Town provides us with next to nothing in the area of activities and recreation. Recreation is
not just sports but also includes things as dancing, yoga, ping-pong, card games, crafts, board games,
singing etc. By active, | mean those who do not require the services from AASC but instead are self-
sufficient, self-reliant, and self-supporting independent individuals like myself. | am 70 years old. We
think it is past time for Richlands to establish an Active Senior Recreation Center. Such a Center can
provide friendships, socialization and activities which are physically, mentally and intellectually
stimulating. Such a facility should cost much less than a one (1) million dollar Soccer Field and can be
utilized year round regardless of weather. Just imagine having all of these activities available in one
central location, such as somewhere on Front Street where seniors can gather and engage. The purpose
of this Center is to have a healthy, energetic population sharing their talents, leading new things and
enjoying community involvement. It is time for active seniors to step up and make their voices heard. |
have given Council a packet of information concerning Active Senior Recreation Centers. | can provide
the same packet available to any interested members of the public. If interested, please contact me. |
would love to hear your suggestions and ideas. Words have meanings, if we as active seniors stand
united together, support our needs, we can be a strong voice in our community and achieve an Active
Senior Recreation Center. We have wisdom, talent and children we can teach besides sports.

Mike - Ms. Stuart | appreciate your passion in what you believe in.
Mayor Cury — “Unscheduled Public Comments” — Keith Jahnke

Keith Jahnke - More than any other generation that preceded them baby boomers want to remain both
physically, mentally, socially emotionally active as well as being active in the community. In according to
an AARP survey at least 83% adults over the age of 45 want to age in place as long as possible. Stay in
their own home as they grow old. A growing focus on active living recognizes that regular activity
improves the health and vitality of aging population The most common age of adults remain
independent physically and socially active and it helps them to maintain their independents. An active
aging population requires less care and services is more likely to contribute time and social capital to the
benefit of the community. A focus on activating and provides effective lens which local government can
assess the ability to respond to the needs of older residents as well as benefit people of all ages.
Increasing socialization of course benefits all. For individuals active living can improve health and overall
vitality increase independence and foster greater social interaction. For local governments this can help
reduce cost associated with social services and health care and economic & social benefits by extending
and expanding older adults’ contribution to specific life. As Grace has already pointed out well over 20%
of the population of Richlands falls in the category of 60 to 74 if you extended that to the people who
are in their 80’s it is over a third of the population of the Town and yet the Town has nothing in the way
of organized activities for this group. This is some of the reasons in addition to what has previously been
stated that | think Richlands needs to provide and active Senior Recreation Center for the Town.

Mayor Cury - Before we go any further tonight in our Public Hearing and in this Council Meeting
everyone has spoken eloquently in what they believe and graceful presentation and civil. On behalf of
the Town, | want to thank everyone for that. It makes a big difference.

10



Mayor Cury — “Unscheduled Public Comments” — Craig Earls

Craig — 311 Linwood Drive — | wanted to talk about the property at 281 Linwood Drive it is between Ms.
Mollo and myself. It is looking pretty bad if you have been over there lately. | feel like | am the
neighborhood watch over there it is a real problem and | appreciate you looking into the foreclosure and
the issues we are dealing with it is a big problem. There are critters and bats, | feel like 1 am in a batman
movie they are so many. If they take root in any house around there, they can come in. There are
snakes, rats, cats, dogs and even humans have come out of there. It is becoming a real problem and
appreciate if you guys could deal with it as quickly as possible. It is a safety issue as well and not only
having to go and look at it every morning. | appreciate you guys looking at it and | know it has taken
time; | appreciate you guys taking care of it. We do have a Rec Commission meeting on Monday and |
would love to put the adult activities on the agenda. Ms. Stuart | would like one of your packets as well.
If it is OK with you | will put you on the agenda. Ms. Stuart is on the Rec Commission as well. |
appreciate you working on the property | know the previous attorney kind of a messed that one up, to
be nice about it. | appreciate you guys moving it along and really taking a concern. It is a really big
problem. | would like to thank Chief Gilbert and the police for handling all my calls and taking care of
the issues.

Mayor Cury — Thank you and | am sorry | keep skipping over people tonight. | am really not that big of a
hurry, but | have been at it a long time today.

Mayor Cury - We will take a five (5) minute recess.

Mayor Cury - The meeting is back in order thank you for the pause. Shea Cook brought a letter to me,
and John informed me he received late this afternoon so we didn’t have a copy to pass out to everyone,
but | will give each of you a copy. Please take a few minutes to read the letter.

Mayor Cury - We have a guest with us this afternoon.
John - We have Jake Thomas with us tonight by zoom from GDS Associates.

Jake — am here to speak on the Electric PCA. | was at the workshop in September and a few questions
were asked so | have put together a power point slide to discussed and get answer back to you.
Presented power point slides and discussed. (Attached to the minutes)

Doug — | would like to add something Richlands transfers a lot more than $200,000 to its general budget.
| don’t know where you got those figures; | think the taxes might be around that. They probably transfer
$500,000/$600,000 besides that into the general budget, if you check the budget. If you change that

figure from $200,000 to at least $700/$800 would go up to 10%/12% that is transferred over. It is not
3%.

11



Jake - John if | didn’t misunderstand a lot of those funds are for paid services. You have to do thru the
electric utility or pay outside services such as billing.

Doug - I would love to have a job making way over a half million dollars running an electric system. That
would be a great job. It does not take $600/$700 to $800 thousand dollars besides the $200,000 to run
that system. That is what the Town takes. It takes probably, we can check it later it is probably more
like 12%.

Mike - We are wasting this guy’s time in speculation.

John — What | understand it is shared cost to each department, | believe that is what Doug is referring
to.

Doug - That is still a transfer.

John —Shared expense.

Doug - It is still showing $200,000 you should have a realistic figure.
John - Those are costs among the departments.

Doug - | will take over your system and | will run for you a lot less than $500,000/$600,000, please give
me a job. | will share all those expenses.

Mayor Cury — Jake in the interest of everyone we have bearing thoughts on it will you continue please.

Jake — Continued with the Power Point — Question: Would a Richlands PCA be comparable to AEP Fuel
Factor Adjustment? Quick survey of posted electric rates for MEPAV members, Types of PCA, Current
PCA, a variety of options to consider. What is the goal of a PCA formula? How does it work? Scenario I-
Normal Differences, Scenario 1 — Summer Transmission, GDS Recommendation

Mayor Cury - | think | understand this but | will have to study this chart. Is number 7-6 July — June is that
correct?

Jake - Yes

Doug - I saw on the last slide it should not be used to generate funds for other services in Town. Could
you do a study or have any studies what the actual cost of running a system like ours is. | am kind of
concerned that we are taking pretty close to a million dollars out of the system to run it, $700/ $800
counting the $200,000 which you did not get the correct figures. Can you do a study of the actual cost
that we should be using to run the system?

12



Jake - That is a study that could be done what we are talking about here is the PCA.

Doug - That would have a direct bearing on your PCA, when it falls short and we are taking that much
out of the system that is going to cause your PCA to go up. | think it has a direct bearing on the PCA.

Jake - Not if the formulas is defined correctly, based only on your power cost. Actual bill associated with
the purchase of energy, and it would be tracking that versus what the budget is specifically for the
purchase of energy and extend of the difference that factor, it should not be taking into account
distribution cost, or any other cost associated with utility specifically just power cost. That is traceable
because you can look at the power bills.

Doug — | understand that it is only pointing toward the cost of electricity buy, but when you take the
total cost, if we charge a citizen and if that PCA goes up it is going to have a direct bearing on the whole
bill, what you are already paying. That is my only point.

Jake — (Continued with power point) - Discussing the different scenarios.

Jake — GDS Recommendations: Recommended use of a backward-looking PCA formula. Allow for charge
or credit on bills as over/under-recovered balance accumulates. Recommended adjustment every there
(3) months. Tracking spreadsheet can be developed to allow for easy review and oversight.

Mike - We use this PCA in the backward-looking PCA formula the cost of energy we are buying and the
adjustments are making, if in fact the customer is charged more that we could credit it back if we find
we are over recovering our balance is that what you are telling me?

Jake - That is correct. You would track the month how much was actual power cost versus how much the
recovery is for the base rates, what was actually incurred, the over collected could be credited back to
the bills.

Mike — To insure we are not charging our citizens too much or trying to bank roll or anything like that.

Jake —That is correct. The large difference in power cost in the summer/winter peak, for budget
purposes need to think about the worst case scenario.

Mike — The PCA formula that you want to do is going to allow us to break even.
Jake — Over the long term, yes, on power cost.

Doug — What you are saying about the PCA is not taking into consideration what the Town takes as we
stated a few minutes ago. My concern is it cost an awful lot that the Town is taking more than it should
to run the system. PCA is not going to protect the citizens from being overcharged it only considers
what we pay for the power and does not consider all the other charges as | said close to one million

13



dollars that the Town is bank rolling in the general fund. Are you following me? You made a statement a
few minutes ago that the PCA is going to protect the citizens it does not. It only protects what we pay for
electricity. It does not take into consideration all the charges the Town is making to run the system. | just
want to clarify that.

Jake - those types of questions are budget questions, PCA it is a standard approach for making sure you
recover your power cost.

Mike - I am curious, do you have any information in regards to why these four (4) localities don’t have a
PCA?

Jake - 1 do not but | can say a lot of times city Council, Electric Commission .... It’s a formula once you
approve a formula it goes, just making sure in designing a formula the source of information is durable.

Mayor Cury - Any questions for Jake? John?

John —The next step would be the Council approving a PCA to have Jake and his colleagues design one
for us. If that is what you wish to do.

Mike — Jake if we don’t do the PCA and we end up winter peaking essentially means we are going to not
pay enough and go into the hole. Is that what you are saying?

Jake — No, winter peaking is designed to have our proposed rate schedules for over time that schedule
assumes winter peaks every year. If all the projections were 100% accurate you would collect all your
power cost that is necessary.

Mike — What you are saying it is an opportunity to give money back to the citizens if we were to summer
peak. Are you saying that?

Jake —Yes, that is correct. Your current PCA does not allow for a credit.

Mike - So we would be saving the citizens of the Town money during the summer peak.

Jake - In the event the cost come in as projected that is correct.

Doug - The whole scenario doesn’t wash because to save the citizens money you have to run the system
correctly. You can’t have absorbent fees to run that system. | don’t follow, the PCA is not going to
protect the citizens the only thing that is going to protect the citizens is if the Town runs the system
correctly and doesn’t bank roll the general budget. That statement | don’t follow. PCA can’t protect the

citizens. The only thing that protects the citizens is how the system is run and how much is taken out of
the system to run it,

14



Jeff - He is just talking about the power cost.
Doug — | know it they are making a blanket statement that the PCA is going to save the citizens money
and protect them. The only thing that is going to protect the citizens in a blank statement like that is

that the whole scenario, you have to consider everything it takes to run the system.

Jeff - He is just talking about the power cost.

Doug - It is misleading, says you are going to protect the citizens you cannot protect the citizens unless
you take everything takes to run the system.

Mayor Cury - Jake anything you have to add. John was asking Council while you were here if we want
you to proceed with formula for backward-looking PCA. The recommendation was to use a backward-
looking PCA formula that allow for charge or credit on bills as over/under-recovered balance

accumulates. Recommends adjustment every three (3) months. Is that your recommendation?

Jake - That was my initial recommendation.

Mayor Cury - The fourth bullet point is “tracking spreadsheet can be developed to allow for easy review
and oversight” Is this a package recommendation that you want Council to consider?

Jake - Yes, that would be a package. We could look at one (1) or two (2) scenarios.
Mayor Cury - What timeline are you looking at to develop a new formula for us.

Jake — It will probably two (2) to three (3) weeks or at least by the next Council meeting.
Mayor Cury - Any other questions for Jake?

Richard - On prior PCA we have leaned on the Electric and Finance Director to keep us updated. In the
past Mr. Taylor has advised us when we didn’t need to add PCA this month and then next month.

Mayor Cury — We voted on it.

Richard - | don’t want to get back into that position where we are voting on this every month. Are we
looking at doing this every three (3) months?

Mayor Cury — Quarterly

Richard — Do we vote quarterly or GDS recommendation quarterly?

15



Jake — Our recommendations is that you approve the formula itself not necessary need a quarterly vote
it is up to the Council. You can go either way with it.

Mike — The formula would essentially decide if we are going to charge the next three (3) months based
on capacity lines.

Jake — That is correct.

Jake —The balance is changing from month to month, there is a formula and a spreadsheet and
calculates the factor.

Richard - That was my question the formula is going to take it out of Council hands, to add or not add
the PCA for the quarter. We are going to rely on the formula.

Jake — That would be my recommendation but again.
Mayor Cury - Is there a motion to have GDS move forward with GDS Recommendation?

Mike - | make a motion that we move forward with GDS Recommendation, Richard seconded the
motion.

Mayor Cury - Motion to give the Town Manager permission to give GDS permission to go ahead with the
recommendation.

Doug - On the PCA the recommendation would be great if it took everything into consideration of what
the Town takes out to run the system. If the system was run correctly and not take so much out for the
budget the PCA is great, it is a good system but if you don’t take the whole system in considering the
PCA is just another added bill to the customer. The more the Town takes out of the general budget it is
going to drive the PCA up. If we would do a study to see why that the Town is taking so much out of the
electric system to run it then | would vote for a PCA. We need to study why we are taking close to a
million dollars out of the system. If we would study that | would vote for PCA, unless we do that | will
vote no.

Mike —This is called a Power Cost Adjustment not a power cost increase this is just for what the cost is
the power that our citizens use, they use the power they pay for the power. Depending on the situation
this could save every citizen money. We are adjusting their bill; we say OK we didn’t have to buy as
much power here is your money back. Before anything or budget this is just them buying power. This is
an opportunity to save our citizens money or break even, not to charge them anymore it is a no brainer.

Doug — The bottom line it does not work that way it is how much your bill is at the end of the month.
When we buy power we mark it up based on how much the Town takes out to put into the budget the
more money they take out of the system to put into the general budget it is going to drive the whole

16



power bill for the citizen. If we would not take out as much to put into the general budget that PCA
would not be as much. Watch and see as time goes on with the PCA if it is adopted it will be another
charge on the overall bill.

Logan - The only thing | see is your average owners, | love the fact that it would give people money back
if the cost was not substantial. Looking at the graph it looks like it fluctuates heavily and when you are
trying to budget your monthly expenses how you would plan properly to pay your electric bill. 1am split
on it | see “good” and “bad” in it.

Mayor Cury- We have a motion and a second, any further discussion? All those in favor of the motion
say yes. All those that oppose say no. Roll Call ~-Doug-No (unless there is a study done to run the system

| will vote no to PCA), Jeff- Yes, Logan — Yes, Richard-Yes, Mike — Yes, Mary Ann —Yes Motion carries —
5/1.

Mayor Cury - Thank you for joining us Jake.
Mayor Cury — Battery Backup Proposal Discussion - We talked about that last month in the work session.

John —This is something that Alice from Blue Ridge Power discussed at the workshop, we wanted to give
everyone some time to think about it. The RFP that is going out in the other municipalities around us are
planning on participating in to get bids on battery back-up for their electric system. Cost around
$10,000 to $12,000 to participate, | wanted to bring back up to Council to see if you wanted to go
forward with it.

Mayor Cury - Does everyone remember what this was about?
Doug - | make a motion that we participate in the Battery Backup, Mike seconded the motion.

Mayor Cury- We have a motion and a second, any further discussion? All those in favor of the motion

say yes. All those that oppose say no. Roll Call -Doug- Yes, Jeff- Yes, Logan — Yes, Richard-Yes, Mike —
Yes, Mary Ann —Yes Motion carries — 6/0.

Mayor Cury — Zoning Board of Appeals Appointment - We have two (2) members who are no longer on
the Zoning Board, Gaynelle Thompson and Chad Ashby has resigned. | want to thank them for their
service. Gaynelle Thompson is someone | learned so much from, when | was first on Council and | have
known her my entire life, | didn’t think | would ever vote in a way that she didn’t but in a few months it
happened, lessons to be learned. Chad Ashby is another person that has given talents to this Town he
has fought his own battles for the Town in what he believes people agreed and disagreed. At the end of
the day we are all still here.

John —The next agenda item is the Planning Commission Appointment that was also Gaynelle’s position;
we do have one (1) person that serves on both of those boards. They are kind of the liaison.

17



Mayor Cury - | think you told me that Barry Alley would serve on the Zoning Appeals Board; he is a fine
person he did serve on the IDA and resigned. The Planning Commission has someone on the Commission
from the Zoning Appeals Board. He is a possibility.

John - The recommendation came from Gene Hurst for Barry Alley to be on the Zoning Board of Appeals.
Mayor Cury - Have you spoken to Richard Smith the Chairman of the Planning Commission?

John - | have not.

Mayor Cury - | have not had the opportunity to talk to him but | think he would be very happy with Barry
Alley. We need a motion for someone to be appointed to the Planning Commission first.

Mary Ann — | make a motion to appoint Barry Alley to the Planning Commission, Mike seconded the
motion.

Mayor Cury- We have a motion and a second, any further discussion? All those in favor of the motion
say yes. All those that oppose say no. Roll Call -Doug- Yes, Jeff- Yes, Logan — Yes, Richard-Yes, Mike —
Yes, Mary Ann — Yes Motion carries — 6/0.

Mayor Cury - Can you inform Barry so he can submit the proper papers for financial disclosure and
things he must do to serve.

Mayor Cury —Zoning Board of Appeals Appointment — | recommended personally if he is willing to serve
Barry Alley, | believe Mr. Hurst has spoken with him. He is one possible candidate and we need another
person. Gaynelle was the representative from the Planning Commission; | assume Barry would be willing

to do that. We will need someone to replace Chad Ashby.

Mike — I make the motion to appoint Barry Alley to the Zoning Board of Appeals, Jeff seconded the
motion.

Mary Ann — | spoke to Barry about serving on the Planning Commission but | did not ask him his interest
to serve on the Zoning Board of Appeals.

Mayor Cury - | have not either but | was assuming he would.
Mary Ann - So Barry understands he will be serving on both.

Jeff - 1 don’t know just for the Zoning Board of Appeals. | guess you can appoint anyone to be liaison.

18



Mayor Cury - It is important for the Planning Commission to have someone on that Board so they can
take to the Zoning Board of Appeals of what the discussion has been and the consideration of Council
and the Commission.

Jeff - Should we let the Zoning Board of Appeals choose who they want to be on the Planning
Commission?

Mayor Cury — You can, if you would rather wait to see what the Zoning Board of Appeals makes a
recommendation.

Mike - Is Gene on the Zoning Board of Appeals?
Mayor Cury — He is the Chairman.
Mike — So he recommended Barry Alley.

John — He was recommended for Zoning Board of Appeals and since he was replacing Gaynelle he would
be serving both | never heard.

Jeff — Someone on the Zoning Boards needs to make the recommendation to be considered by Council.

Mayor Cury - He has been appointed to be on the Planning Commission by vote of Council. Mary Ann
you spoke to him about Planning Commission, correct?

Mary Ann —Yes

Mayor Cury — Would Council rather wait for him to be recommended by the Planning Commission?
Mary Ann — | would feel more comfortable because | did not ask him about serving on both.

Mike - The Zoning Board of Appeals you did ask him and he was OK with it.

Mary Ann — He could serve on Zoning and not Planning. He has a choice correct?

Mayor Cury ~ He could.

Mary Ann - My question to him was Planning Commission not Zoning. | received a message during this
meeting he was OK with that.

Mayor Cury — Gene Hurst has been in communication with Barry Alley and he is willing to serve on the
Zoning Board of Appeals. John is that correct?

19



John — Correct

John -1 don’t think it is a rush but he understands he will be serving on two (2) Boards and not thinking
they are the same one.

Mike — Last month we gave a citizen three (3) days to decide, so out of sake of time | think we should go
ahead with it give him (3) three days and if he feels like he can’t do both.

Mayor Cury — | think we should proceed with the motion.
Mayor Cury- We have a motion and a second, any further discussion? All those in favor of the motion
say yes. All those that oppose say no. Roll Call -Doug- Yes, Jeff- Yes, Logan — Yes, Richard-Yes, Mike —

Yes, Mary Ann —Yes Motion carries — 6/0.

Mayor Cury - Barry Alley will be serving on the Planning Commission and Zoning Board of Appeals upon
his acceptance. John can you talk to him and ask him to make a speedy decision.

John — 1 will talk to him in the morning.

Mayor Cury - We need someone else to serve on the Zoning Board of Appeals, if you are not sure we can
wait.

Jeff — | think they are still working on another replacement.

Mayor Cury — Recommendation from Jeff to wait until we hear from Zoning Board of Appeals.

Mayor Cury — Green Space Update and Resolution

John —There is a Resolution in the packet. The have started on the stage, excited to see some progress
in that area but this Resolution is needed so we can apply for the next round of money from CPROP for
an additional $50,000 to finish out Phase Il. 1am asking Council to approve the Resolution so we can
move forward with the application.

Mayor Cury - I must comment that the acronyms like CPROP throw people for a loop they don’t know
what it is, when | was on Council, | ask for a whole list of those things so | would know what was going
on. CPROP stands for Cumberiand Plateau Regional Opportunity Program, Jim Baldwin. Read

Resolution R-2021-10-01.

Mike - | make the motion to adopt Resolution R-2021-10-01, Jeff seconded the motion.

20



Mayor Cury- We have a motion and a second, any further discussion? All those in favor of the motion
say yes. All those that oppose say no. Roll Call -Doug- Yes, Jeff- Yes, Logan — Yes, Richard-Yes, Mike —
Yes, Mary Ann —Yes Motion carries — 6/0.

Mayor Cury — Public Comments Rules and Procedure Update — In the packet there is an embedded
Resolution.

John — That is the embedded Resolution, it is a little wordy on how public comments should be handled.
| think we should add to one of the workshops when we discuss the Charter and the ARPA funding as
well. We need to dig into it and discuss.

Mayor Cury - | think that is a good idea for us to take time to discuss. We can review the wording of the
Charter changes. Let’s put to the side for the moment. Next is the Charter Workshop Discussion and

what else did you want to discuss?

John — ARPA

Mayor Cury — | thought of what everyone spoke on tonight and what they want they spoke from their
heart and their head. We will plan a Work Session.

Mayor Cury — November 1 at 6:00pm Work session

Mayor Cury — Charter Workshop Discussion, AARP Discussion and Public Comments and Rules and
Procedures at the work session.

Mayor Cury — Drive-Thru T & L Contract Approval — We have a copy of the MOU in our packet.
John - This is a proposal for the drive thru from Thompson & Litton, need approval.

Mike - | make the motion that we approve the contract with Thompson & Litton, Richard seconded the
motion.

Mayor Cury- We have a motion and a second, any further discussion? General vote, approved
unanimously. Motion carries.

Mayor Cury ~ Drive-thru Update
John - We have put out for bid for the contracting of the work.
Mayor Cury — Junior Firefighters Program Ordinance — | think we should consider this, | think it is a great

program personally. | did call John with some concerns this afternoon, John did you have time to
address?

21



John — We need to update the Ordinance number and the wording of volunteer. We will have the first
reading tonight and hopefully the second reading at the next meeting. They already kind of had this in
place but want to make it an official program.

Mayor Cury — So we changed the Ordinance Number to 017?

John ~ Correct

Mayor Cury — My concerns were it said in the original ordinance “Whereas, any person sixteen years of
age is authorized to participate fully in all activities of a volunteer fire company”, we no longer volunteer
the members are paid. Whereas, any person sixteen years of age or older is authorized to participate
fully in all activities of a Volunteer Jr Fire Fighting Program? Keith are they going to be paid or are they

volunteers?

Keith — Volunteers, The Ordinance is needed for the Program. We have had this program unofficially for
a couple of years now.

Mayor Cury - | think the Ordinance is important just want to get the wording correct. We are not a
Volunteer Fire Department. If everyone is OK with Volunteer Jr. Fire Fighting Program.

Mike - I would like to voice my appreciation for Keith for the development of those young men/women
for their involvement, | think it is fantastic and we support every way we possibly can.

Mayor Cury - Logan please read the 0-2021-10-01.
Logan — Read the Ordinance

Richard - It talks about the 16 years of age or older, when they become 18 do they not qualify for the
Program?

Mayor Cury — Words matter.

Keith — For Jr's

Mike - I make the motion that we adopt Ordinance 0-2021-10-01.
Mayor Cury - This is the first reading.

Mike — Ok | apologize.

Mary Ann — Can we dispense of the second reading and approve it?

22



Mayor Cury - It is not written that way, not really even for a first reading. It needs some doctoring.
John — The plan was to have the first reading tonight and the second reading next month.

Mayor Cury - We need to be very cautious how we do things.

Mayor Cury — Town Manager’s Report — Introduction of Finance Officer

John — Heather Perry is the new Finance Officer, | just wanted you to be able to put a face to the name.
I am sure most of you already know her. Just want to welcome Heather to her new role in the Town.

Heather - | am originally from Grundy, | have lived in the area for around 18 years. | am married and my
husband is from here, we have two (2) kids 1 have a degree in Public and Business Administration. 1
worked in finance before | came here around 10 plus years, | think we have a good group of people here
and have a lot to offer. | really appreciate you all and John for giving me the opportunity.

Mayor Cury - Thank you so much for your service.

Mayor Cury — Hill Top Update

John - | have a map to pass around so | can explain the long term project. John handed out the map to
everyone. The yellow lines is what we have currently (2 inch line), blue lines is the proposed upgrades
((6 inch line) and the Red Box is the current water meters. At this point the cost is about $20,000 if we
wait as we had planned or until the new lines are in place the tap fee would be closer to $2000/$3000
because the line is already put in place. | just wanted to see the value in $20,000 or come back in a year
or two and do the same work.

Mike - What we are telling me we are already have the plans for the blue lines?

John - Correct that is part of the water lines upgrades.

Mary Ann — At this point it does not appear of any activity or renovations going on with this property.

John - | talked to the building inspector they had a permit for roof, progress has been very little.

Mike — We have 100% certainty that is part of our current upgrade schedule and that happens within
the next few years. Have you relayed this to the gentlemen?

John — 1 have not. | think he had a misunderstanding thinking it was $2000/$3000 and it is $20,000 now
but it is in the scope of work.

23



Mayor Cury — Miscellaneous

John —The Hometown of the Clinch this is an organization where Ashley attended the meeting last
month. Since she attended the meeting we can apply for $1000 grant and use it toward the Greenspace
Project and hopefully offset some of the Town’s contribution.

Mayor Cury —Is this part of CRVI? | think it is part of the Hometown of the Clinch, they had a
professional come and do this logo | was active on it at one time. Larry Johnson is responsible for getting
for the Town where it says Hometown of the Clinch it is part of that program. Is the grant restricted to
what we can use it for?

John -1 think it is pretty open, | talked to Ashley she had a pretty good appropriate use for it.

Mary Ann — | make the motion to give John and Ashley authorization to apply for the grant, Jeff
seconded the motion.

Mayor Cury - | will just ask for a general vote, all in favor say I, any oppose — Motion carries
unanimously.

John - Credit Card — Auditors said we take more credit cards than anyone they audited, which was
shocking. We are looking at our Utility Billing Company using a third party to come thru them, the staff
feels it would be a cheaper alternative. The staff spends a lot of time on and a liability if someone calls
in and reads the credit card over the phone what if something was to happen? Just wanted you to be
aware if someone tells they called to make a payment and they transferred me. It will free up staff time
and be cheaper for the Town.

Mayor Cury - Is there a consensus from Council to support John on this?

Doug - If they come in person they can still pay it.

John — For now but will probably try to phase that out long-term.

Doug - What if someone is due to be cut-off.

John - They can call that is how the other utilities have gone.

Heather - It is the same company instead of going online and paying they would call the 800 number. It
is just a different way about doing it.

Mayor Cury ~ Attorney Comments — Foreclosure Update

24



Bob — Brad Pyott has been working with John on this issue it is my understanding it is different from the
past and address the properties under the ordinances, that is one alternative it is also considering tax
abatement that is something that is being discussed with Brad, which of these would be more effective
way to go to address these properties. The county has some tax sales on some properties in the Town of
Richlands; one may be the 281 Linwood Drive. May be in the works of the county already.

Mike - It is different properties.

John — If we foreclose on it then we could sell it and hope they have to do something with the property.
If we do the dilapidated properties, we send notices, then a hearing, etc. then the Town can go and tear
down. We have two (2) different options if Council wants us to do the foreclosure and hope someone
else will do it or we spend the money to do the demolition.

Bob - I think Brad and John are discussing the proper way to go. Once they get an idea then they can
come to the Council.

John - | don’t want to start one process and we pay $20,000 to tear a house down and at that time
working on a foreclosure process.

Mayor Cury — What is Council’s pleasure? If | recall Mary Ann mentioned at the last meeting it was
originally scheduled for sale on the court house steps on June 14 but it didn’t happen.

Mary Ann — Was that a tax sale?
Bob - Yes, one of the two alternatives.

Mary Ann — My opinion is for these two (2) properties because Hidden Valley and Fairfax property, my
recommendation is whichever option is the fastest.

Bob — | have not been involved in the nuts and bolts, Brad has been doing out of my office. | don’t know
the specifics of the two (2) options to be able to advise you. | know the concerns and you want the
problem resolved.

Mary Ann — Mr. Earls spoke tonight about how hazardous. Tell him to move fast like he runs races.
Thank you for getting it moved in the right direction.

Mayor Cury — “Council Member Reports” — Logan Plaster

Logan — Update on the Cat situation as many of you know | have worked with the ladies in Town pretty
much the entire time that | have been on Council. | spoke with Julia Winston today she stated to date 49
cats have been spayed and neutered here in Town, they had a meeting last week, Lisa Hess is no longer
overseeing it she has accepted a new position and now does not have the time to trap. There are two

25



(2) individuals who are joining the group who are both experienced in trapping actually there are three
(3). This past Sunday they trapped 11 cats and delivered to the Margaret B. Mitchell Clinic yesterday
those will be spayed neutered and relocated. SVCC students are also are starting to assist in the efforts
and | have to commend Julia Winston with Wise County Humana Society she has really taken this by the
reigns driving and running it. | really appreciate her. Currently something that rarely happens if you are
animal lover rescuers are vital especially to kill shelters. But today 21 cats are placed with rescues that
any in Western Virginia one being Kitten Home in George Town there is an article on their Face book
page which she shared with me, the rest of the cats very few at the Richlands Mall which was the
original issue. The ones that are left are spayed and being looked after. John and | had talked a few
weeks ago regarding some questions that Linda Keen had, she is overseeing the fundraising, and |
encourage citizens to try to help them. They have gotten that many cats spayed and neutered on
donations. | talked to John regarding a request by Preston Farmer about the speeding issue on Farmer’s
Street. Mr. Farmer messaged me and asked about a reduction in the speed limit it is very dangerous, |
told him you would be talking to Jerry about that. When you get an update to him, please relay to him, |
appreciate that.

John —1spoke to Jerry but it is up to Council if they want to change speed limit in that area, itisa dead
end road and the amount of traffic looks like they are going a lot faster than they are, don’t know if
10mph on sign would help or not. I will leave up to Council how they would like for us to proceed.

Logan — The Flag Pole at the Recreation Center that was one of the things | had talked to you about in
the past | just wanted to see if there was any update.

John — 1 met with the Rec Commission once or twice they wanted to see what type of upgrades or
renovations settled out they didn’t want set a pole and then having to move it, they just want to make
sure they get the right location before they install.

Logan - | know we just spoke about dilapidated properties but | talked to Ms. Natalie Wright today on 6%
Street she lives under the bridge in the curve, | had told Tim when he was here Ms. Wright and Ms. Jan
Erp have both contacted me regarding property that is across the street and they consider a hazard. |
would like for us to be able to help them in some way. She asked me if there was anything we could do.
Regarding the Greenway | really appreciate all the work that Connie put into that when she was working
full time with the Town. It looks really good and | am excited to see what it looks like. Thank you Connie

Mayor Cury — “Council Member Reports” — Mary Ann Strong

Mary Ann — As always the Rec Commission as Craig Earls mentioned we meet Monday at 6:00pm at the
Rec Park, we welcome everyone. Logan we did talk about the Flag Pole, if it seems like it is going to be
some time on a decision for renovations, Rocky Hill as you all saw full of energy and passion he said he
could help someone put one up and move at some point. We have not forgotten that, people who use
those fields, like the softball group is patient and understanding at this point but realize the importance
of it. As far as Rec, Soccer is finishing up and has be hugely successful, lots of activity down there. As

26



mentioned parking is an issue. Whatever we do with Rec we will have to address the parking. Please |
don’t want to get into the discussion of the Soccer Field but maybe it would calm people down
especially those watching on You Tube we are not proposing that we use 1.2 million dollars of our AARP
money. If we could get a $500,000 grant we would be using $400,000 and a loan. | really compliment
John, one of his many strength is financing options and alternatives and also Jessica Reynolds Lawrence
the Rec Director, if the Council approves any money for the Rec it will be used appropriately there are
issues with the swimming pool and heaters in the gym. Maybe that will calm a lot of people down.
Soccer field is wonderful but we have to take care of what we have got. Parking is an issue, John and |
have talked about some options. Volleyball League will start soon this year the Rec is going to run the
Volleyball League we are trying to get away from outsourcing leagues and programs. With Lisa Cordle
assistance she ran the league last year she is going to help Jessica we are going to do Volleyball for girls
and boys. There are a lot of boys that like to play Volleyball | didn’t realize that. Following that will be
the Basketball League. Rec and Ramp-Up Richlands will partner together on October 30 and 31to do a
Haunted Trail at Critterville. Anyone interested that is watching on You Tube or here they need some
volunteers to be actors and dress up. Another positive is last Thursday at the College the Pure Salomon
people which we always called Project Jonah they were there. John and | went over | wanted to
introduce him to Lala Korall, it was very positive and it was a time for people/vendors were interested to
come by. They are moving dirt over there it is going to happen not originally where we wanted it but
they have not forgotten Doran. Hopefully they will have Phase Il eventually. Obviously it could take
much time. It is a very positive Project. Wanda Lowe messaged me and | told her when we have our
workshop on the ARPA money we will of course take into consideration the Hidden Valley folks and the
problems that they are having with water runoff and flooding. Thankfully Covid seems to be leveling off
here but it is National Emergency Nurses Week throughout the country all nurses deserve a lot of
recognition and especially emergency room and ICU. lust a big shout out to the Emergency Room
Nurses at Clinch Valley | think we are very blessed and they do a tremendous job.

Mayor Cury — “Council Member Reports” ~ Mike Street

Mike — Revitalization Group they have a meeting that is scheduled for tomorrow to discuss the next
steps on that with the Grant. That is something that is important to me | have been involved in that
since the beginning with Connie and now Ashley is doing a lot of that, Connie is guiding her along. We
are excited with those efforts have continued. There has been a lot of involvement thru the community
and some of those folks will be at the meeting tomorrow. | can’t wait to share next steps in regards to
what that looks like and what the potential benefit will be for the Town of Richlands. | will continue to
give updates on that.

Mayor Cury - What is the time and place for the meeting?

Mike - Tomorrow at 2:00pm, if you want to attend you most certainly can. There will be a number of
different people.

John - It was a selected list that was on there before.

27



Mayor Cury - | don't recall, must have slipped my email.
Mike - | will email to you.
Mayor Cury - This is for the Revitalization.

Mike — It is incredible important to take care of our Town. | told Connie | would make sure that stayed
on track; | promised her | would continue that, it is a wonderful opportunity.

Mike - | had a meeting with the Back to School Bash Committee on Monday, we will be providing funds
to our local schools with what was left there. It was a promise from me to our donors to make sure that
money stays within our local school system and that is going to happen. We are going to decide what
that is going to be on Monday. We have some significant Fire Department issue in regards to radio as
well as normal coverage issues as well | have been in multiple conversations with the Fire Department,
EMS, John and multiple sit downs with the Sheriff so we are all on the same page and we all agree there
is some issues. Currently we have a major portal radio issue that is very concerning to me, where if our
Fire Department is on a call and they are on their portal radios 25% of the time they are not able to
reach Tazewell. That is a significant issue where we have had it for years but had not come to light
because they have not being going to Tazewell. That is why we are just now seeing this since we have
transitioned to 911 and we have noticed this is a problem. For instance, if the Fire Department
responses to meth fire anything in regard to that and a person shows up after they are on the scene and
the ambulance is gone and someone pops up and has a gun. One in four chances our Fire Department
can’t talk to Tazewell and let them know there is a person on the scene with a gun. What if they find
another person that is injured, and the ambulance is already gone? This can be resolved by what we call
rack packs both to command vehicles as well as the fire trucks that respond on scenes. This is an option
that I think Council should consider. It is very important for public safety as well as our citizens. This
appears to be an issue that can be fixed very easily. A decision made by us regards those based on the
conversation with Two Way Radio as well as the Sheriff, Keith and Matt | believe we should go ahead
and purchase one (1) to make sure everything goes well and then purchase the rest. | am going to
suggest to Council that we use some of the AARP money for that we can go into more detail
conversations as far as what that looks like. It is incredibly important to make sure that we can respond
efficiently that is what we do as a Council as far as providing our part of public safety. We believe
around five (5) of the rack packs absolutely do what we need it to do. Include command vehicle crash
truck, new truck and the other engine as well as a Claypool Hill Truck. These are all needed to make
sure we can communicate efficiently. | will be prepared to bring that to our meeting as far as AARP
workshop so we can make a decision on that | obviously will be a big advocate | feel like it is a no
brainer. The second problem is an on coverage issue. There is coverage problems the sheriff will back
me up on this one, we talked today for quite some time. We had breakfast together to discuss the
problems and how we can work together. There is a possible fix with coverage issues.

Mayor Cury — Did you say you had breakfast and met with Sheriff Hieatt.

28



Mike - He is very aware of our issues, he will provide a list of things we need in that nature, we had a
meeting as well a cheaper option. The option he gave was around $21,000 in regards to upgrading our
Tower at Claypool Hill, the alternative option is to move our traffic to what is called Morris Knob, they
have proven the ability, coverage problems no longer exist, proof from the Chief as far as him being on
the radio with Morris Knob. Already proves that it helps, we got cost of $8000/$9000 instead of $21,000,
half the cost. | have been in conversations with the Sheriff they have money for that as well, not only
Richlands but County issue, they have money budgeted to help with this problem but also some of the
coverage is a Richlands issues. 1 feel like we should join in on those costs they have funds available to
assist us with that as well as manpower. They have the ability to do a lot of work themselves and help in
the process. | was pleased they are willing to help and I have no problem negotiating. These are issues
that will help us become more efficient, that is what our focus is here. | am passionate about it and
making sure it works the way it is supposed to, next steps | will be meeting with the folks at 911 Staff,
Sheriff, Keith, John and Matt and dive deep into these issues and solve once and for all. | will come back
with more information. | can’t emphasize how important it is that we put public safety first in regards to
how we respond and be able to respond. Any questions just let me know.

Mayor Cury — “Council Member Reports”- Jeff Hurst

Jeff — | just have a couple of things, it was great to see the parade back in Town. It was great to see
everybody and the High School participating and the different organizations that participated in the
Homecoming Parade. | thought it was great and appreciated all the help from the Town and Police
Department for making it smooth and funny. Just to piggyback what Mary Ann was saying close to
finishing Clinch River Soccer season, happy to be able to do that again and looking forward to Volleyball
and Basketball. It was interesting | was talking to Mary Ann one night after .... It was fun to see a lot of
people out and in the restaurants here in Town, there were several families in the restaurants that |
went to and Mary Ann said there were four (4) families at that restaurant she was at. It is great to see
people out in Town and supporting local businesses. The other thing | wanted to mention | attended the
Ramp-Up meeting, Mike and | have talked a little bit about this too, we want to help them develop and
get some assistance from the Town. We have an event planned for next Summer, “Rock the Clinch”
looking at a possible two (2) day festival we may ask for some monetary support from the Town and
logistics as far as working out with the Police Station.

Mayor Cury — “Council Member Reports” — Richard Brown

Richard — | just want to remind Mike and the rest of the Council | was excluded from the discussion from
911 because of my employment at the Police Department and it involving dispatch. | don’t know if you
recall or not when you made the motion you stated that it would be zero expense for the switch and any
expense incurred would be the County’s. Now you are asking the Town to use ARPA money for this. |
want you to look at that and remember you made the motion based on.

Mike —~ Yep

29



Richard ~ | am going to go all the way back to May 24, 2010, myself, | was in the final months of my first
term on Council along with Mr. Ratliff and Mr. Cury. We had made the motion in May of that year to
switch the employees to the VRS as well as a motion was made to switch the law enforcement officers
to the LEO Supplement. At that time | don’t know if either one of you recall it but it was discussed with
the full-time members and the Fire and Rescue at the time which is EMS, those full-time officers or full-
time employees with Rescue was eligible for that as well. When my term ended the ball was dropped
regarding the inclusion of the Rescue. Heather can speak on it but Covid now being the monster that it
is, line of duty has agreed to pay any injuries or deaths sustained from line of duty based on Covid. Not
just because of Covid | think we need to revisit getting those six full-time members eligible for the LEO
Program. We promised them basically we would do but we dropped the ball. | know things are slow and
it is near the end of my term and | would like to see if we can start looking at getting some cost and
stuff. Do you recall that?

Mayor Cury — 1 do | really do. It was an additional expense and we all agreed it was a wise investment for
our employees. John, can you look into that?

John —| will talk to Heather.

Richard - Doug do you recall that?

Doug — Yes | do.

Richard — Do you still support?

Doug —Yes | do

Mayor Cury - | think it was unanimous at the time.

Richard — When | went off Council the ball dropped and honestly | have been wanting to bring up and |
am not saying to use ARPA money because there will be some back cost but | think away to attract very
qualified employees by offering the benefit.

Doug — | think that is an excellent suggestion.

Mike - What does it do?

Richard — Basically it is a supplement that goes along with the VRS if you serve in a hazardous duty
position for 20 years. You receive a supplement paid for by the State, there is a cost incurred by the

Town initially to catch up the years of service that we have not paid for before. | think it needs to be
included in our budgetary; | would like to see that.

30



Doug - | think it is excellent timing with this extra money because it is fairly expensive.
Richard — | know it is but we are also are just talking six (6) employees. 1 think it is doable.
Doug - | think it would be good use for this money.

Logan — [s it like insurance or like a supplemental pay?

Richard — It is a supplemental pay that is provided by the VRS.

Logan - It is a supplementary pay for you putting your life on the line.

Richard — Hazardous duty

Richard — LEO — Law Enforcement Officers Supplement and also Fire and Rescue full-time employees. 1
think we merged our Fire and Rescue and have six (6) full time employees that will be eligible.

Logan - | agree that should have already been done.
Mayor Cury — “Council Member Reports” — Doug Ratliff

Doug - The letter from Shea Cook, do you want me to summarize or do you want me to read it? Itis
very important.

Mayor Cury - | will read it. (Included in the minutes)

Doug — | think there could be no better use for that money to study the flooding and maybe we could
get a grant to help the Town in many ways even beyond the flooding. | hope that the Council when we
are in the work session will consider Shea Cook’s suggestion. | agree with him, all the people who spoke
tonight for the Soccer Field and all this. How many has gone to the Board of Supervisors, 75% of the
people that use those fields are in the County. Why does Richlands always have to bear the burden and
pay for everything? All the people who spoke tonight | want to see them in front of the Board of
Supervisors and make the same pitch that they made to us. | suggest that.

Mike - John, do you have any update on Fluoride?

John - They were working on it and have a meeting tomorrow morning as soon as | get an update from
that meeting | will pass it along.

Mike - Do you have any update on the Library?

31



John —Yes, but it is not good news, we received one (1) bid it was quite a bit higher than what we
received in grant funding it is something we will have to discuss at the workshop. It was so much higher |
don’t know how we could make it work out. We are working with T & L to see what we can cut to make
it work.

Mary Ann - | would ask Chief Gilbert to come and tell us about the event at Fannie’s last Saturday to
benefit White Christmas ~ Shop with a Cop.

Jerry — About two/three months ago me and Lisa from Fannie’s along with Carolyn Marshall approached
me and they wanted to do something to help us with Shop with Cop Christmas Program for the children.
They worked with Planet Power Sports on a four-wheeler and sell up to 350 chances at $100 a piece to
pay for the four-wheeler and everything they made above that was going to donate to us for Shop with
Cop Christmas Program. We have done it for around 30 some years and worked our way up to 120
children. They worked on the idea and put it together, this past Saturday they give the four-wheeler
away. | went down and joined the festivities; Mary Ann was there and helped sell a few tickets. Keith
Reynolds won the four-wheeler. Fannies was able to donate $10,700 from the proceeds, with Covid and
everything we have dealt with over the last year, last year was tough and deleted most of our reserves
just trying to serve our children. What they have done is phenomenal; they gave back and helped us.
Again this year we will help 120 plus children. It is a big event | know it’s real close to my heart, Mary
Ann, Rod and other Councilmembers and members of the Community that has helped. It is a
heartwarming program. A lot of the kids wouldn’t get to have Christmas without us helping.

Jerry - Planning on October 29, having Trunk or Treat at the PD on Friday afternoon. If anyone is
interested in joining in on that it is free of charge. It is non-political, just having a good evening.

Logan — Do we have that advertised?
Jerry —Yes
Mayor Cury - What time is it Jerry?

Jerry — 5pm to 7pm — Good event good for the kids. Contact Sgt. Crystal Stanley she will put your name
down, will be outside in the parking lot.

Jerry - The donations has not been publicized yet, they are getting a big check. We are doing a photo-op
to let everyone know how hard those people worked. Appreciate everyone who purchased tickets it
was awesome,

Mayor Cury - Thank you Jerry and the other members of the Police Department.

Mayor Cury - “Mayor’s Comments”

32



Mayor Cury — It is pleasing to see all of us moving along it is a good thing. | am deeply gratified. | will
echo Jeff on the parade; it was really nice to have a parade in downtown Richlands. In certain ways it
reminded me of old times. | think it is a good thing. Thanks to everybody and the Town who helped with
that.

Mayor Cury - Who is on the select group for the meeting tomorrow, can you pull up your email and let
me know?

Mike — Ashley Harris, Ervin Davis, John O’Daniel, Ginger Branton, Rod Cury, John Willis, Barry Alley,
Adrienne Cordle, Ramona Simmons, Paul Crawford, Debbie Milton — Cumberland Plateau

Mayor Cury ~Thank you
Doug — Who came up with the [ist?

Connie - It was the former people on the committee with a few people added to it. It is not the finally
committee but who was on it last time.

Mike — Somebody you want to add?

Doug - Just wanted to know where the list came from.

Mayor Cury - Connie are you on this?

Connie — | was asked but 1 am helping behind the scene.

Mike - This meeting is kind of like brainstorming?

Mayor Cury - The reason | am asking | was very involved in it. That is how we got Phase | done we had
lots of meetings. Ginger was on the committee, it is quite a process and it takes a while to get the
money and people to participate.

Mayor Cury - We have a joint meeting with the IDA and Planning Commission, when is that John?
John — October 26

Doug — Does that include Council?

Mayor Cury — Just those two but anyone can attend. My interest in it we are all for the Town. These
are two (2) different bodies that are similar function but not identical. Just want to be clear in what they
are doing.

33



Doug - What is the purpose?
Mayor Cury - | don’t know the purpose but John can you explain.

John — Planning Commission is working on RFP for where the Council approved $30,000 to have outside
consulting company to work on our Zoning map and ordinance, we look at that and what we want it to
be. IDA was aware of that and wanted to make sure they could come and give some input on what they
would like to see as related to the IDA function. In the end it will be up to the Planning Commission what
decisions are made but the IDA wanted to have a voice at the table.

Mayor Cury - For the initial part, | ask John | wanted to be sure that | understand as a member of the
government, the IDA function is to help us seek industry and business. As far as zoning that is under the
Planning Commission, | think and | do not know, the IDA involvement is to suggest to the Planning
Commission we do this and this and this with zoning open for business and industry.

John - That is pretty much in line, wanted to make sure that piece was considered and zoning updated.
Doug - They bring to Council?

Mayor Cury - For the final say, Planning Commission studies recommendations because Zoning can be
one of those things, it is one of the things the Town could get sued more easily than any place else. We
have to be really careful. The Planning Commission is in place to do the background work for Council and
give a studied opinion to Council for consideration as far as zoning. Anything with zoning has to have a
Public Hearing. If you are rezoning in an area everyone in that whole area and surrounding area has to
receive a letter from the Town notifying them of the Public Hearing and there could be a possible
change in zoning might affect them, is that correct John.

John - Correct any recommendation they make on the zoning would have to come to Council before you
go thru the whole procedure.

Mayor Cury - Doug that is why | ask all that | wanted to be sure | understood it correctly.

Mayor Cury - We are going to go into “Closed Session” for 2.2-3711 (A) (29) Contract Negotiations (DMV,
Property Acquisition, Jonah Project), 143 318.11A3 Attorney Client Privilege. Do | have a motion to go
into “Closed Session”?

Mary Ann - | make the motion to go into “Closed Session”, Jeff seconded the motion.

Mayor Cury- We have a motion and a second, any further discussion? All those in favor of the motion
say yes. All Council members “1”.

John - I have a correction, change 143 318.11A3 to 2.2-3711(A) (7)

34



Mayor Cury - We need a motion to come back into regular session and to certify that each member of
Council, Mayor and anyone included in the “Closed Session” discussed nothing other than 2.2-3711 (A)
(29) Contract Negotiations regarding the DMV, Property Acquisition, Jonah Project and 2.2-3711(A)(7)
Attorney Client Privilege.

Mayor Cury - Work Session- Nov. 1 at 6:00pm, Regular Council Meeting- Nov. 9 at 6:00pm.

Mayor Cury - | need a motion to adjourn.

Mary Ann - | make a motion to adjourn, Jeff seconded the motion.

All said “I”

Adjourned

Rodney D. Cury, Mayor

Connie Allen, Town Clerk

35






RESOLUTION
R-2021-11-01

Alternate Appointment to Blue Ridge Power Agency’s Board of Directors

WHEREAS, John O'Daniel currently serves as Director of Blue Ridge Power Agency as a representative
for the Town of Richlands; and,

WHEREAS, Town Council desires to appoint Heather Perry as an alternate representative for the Town
of Richlands for the term of her office or at the will of the Town Council.

This Resolution was adopted by a vote, upon a Motion made by and

second by . Vote

Rodney D. Cury, Mayor

Attest:

Connie Allen, Town Clerk

Ayes:

Nays:

Absent:







ORDINANCE
0-2021-10-01

WHEREAS, the Town of Richlands desires to institute a Junior Firefighter Program; and

WHEREAS, any person sixteen (16) years of age or older is authorized to participate fully
in all activities of a Fire Company duly authorized to operate in the town/county after they:

a) Become a member of the Fire Company.

b) Supplies to the Chief Fire Officer of the Fire Company written confirmation that
such person is a resident of the Commonwealth of Virginia and has parental
approval and

c) Attains certification under National Fire Protection Association 1001, level one,
fire fighter standards as administered by the Department of Fire Programs; and

BE IT ORDAINED by the Town Council of the Town of Richlands, Virginia, that the Town
of Richlands so establishes the Richlands Junior Firefighter Program in accordance with Virginia
Code §40.1-79.1.

A motion was made by and seconded by that
this Ordinance be adopted and establish the Richlands Junior Firefighter Program on December
9, 2021, as pursuant to section 3.8 of the Richlands Town Charter, and such was passed by a
- ____vote of the Town Council on this the 9th day of November 9, 2021.

Rodney D. Cury,

Mayor
Attest:
Town Clerk
Ayes:
Nays:
Absent:







. Town of Richlands
PAID CHECKS REPORT
11/9/2021
Check#t Pald To Description Amount
10852} ADVANCE AUTO PARTS $1,067.88 |ALL DEPTS-PARTS & SUPPLIES
10853 | AMAZON WEB SERVICES, INC, $348.06 | AMAZON WEB SVCS-{T-CLOUD SERVICE
10854 |AMERICAN BANKERS INSURANCE COMPANY $1,531.00 |WWTP-FLOOD INSURNANCE-ANNUAL PREMIUM
10855 AMERICAN CARPET CARE, INC, $19,670.00 |AMERICAN CARPET-MOWING OCT 2021
10856 | APPALACHIAN AGENCY FOR SENIOR CITIZENS $600.00 |AASC-NOV 2021 PUBLIC TRANSIT |
10857 |APPALACHIAN AGGREGATES, LLC $465.24 |APPALACHIAN AGG-ST DEPT-STONE '
10858 |APPLIED INDUSTRIAL TECHNOLOGIES-DIXIE $492.49 |SHOP-WELDING HOOD LENSES, BATTERIES, PAPER TOWELS
10859 | ARAMARK UNIFORM SERVICES $880.68 | ARAMARK-ALL DEPTS-UNIFORMS |
1086018 & H SALES $1,208.00 [ST 605-SNOWPLOW-DUAL $P CNTRL BOX, 2 BOLT KIT, 2 MARKER KIT
10861} BADGER METER $2,135.00 |BADGER METER-LINES-E-SERIES G2 ULTRASONIC METER PO 183510
10862 | BLUE RIDGE POWER AGENCY $5,492.07 |BRPA-SEPT 21-GDS/ENG, BRPA CHGS I
10863 [BOGGS MUNICIPAL SERVICES, INC, $6,827.18 |BOGGS MUNICIPAL-WTP-FARMER TANK #2 REBUILD
10864 | BOUND TREE MEDICAL, LLC $272.07 |BOUND TREE-RESCUE-MEDICAL SUPPLIES PO R53189
10865 [C.W, WILLIAMS FIRE EQUIPMENT $933.00 |C. W, WILLIAMS-FIRE-50-5 GAL PAILS FOAM PO F2025
10866 | CARTER MACHINERY COMPANY, INC, $2,035.93 [WWTP, PD-GENERATOR PM MAINT
10867 |CLINCH VALLEY REPAIR, INC. $831.00 JALL DEPTS-FIRE EXT INSP/REPL/MAINT-ANNUAL I
10868 |CMC SUPPLY, INC, $2,474.53 |CMC SUPPLY-LINES-6 COPPER METER SETTER 15" HEIGHT
10869 | COLE TRUCK PARTS, INC, $1,131.88 [SANT-#648-4-BRAKE SHOE KIT, 4 BRAKE DRUM, 2 DRUM
10870 COMPUTER PROJECTS OF i, INC, $180.00 {COMPUTER PRJ OF IL-PD-MESSENGER MAINT FY21 PO 304983
10871 | CREATIVETIME SOLUTIONS $140.00 |TIME & ATTENDANCE WEB HOSTING-ALL EMPLOYEES l
1087210 & T ENTERPRISES $12.47 |D & T ENTERPRISES-WWTP-HEX HEAD SCREWS/NUTS PO 81664
10873 | DISPLAY SALES COMPANY $999.60 |CHRISTMAS BOWS-PAID BY DONATION- RLDS GARDEN CLUB l
10874 DOMINION PEST CONTROL, INC. $205.00 |DOMINION PEST-PD/WTP/REC/RESCUE OCT'21 PEST CONTROL
108751F.S.1. MID STATE DIV, INC., $85.00 |FSI MID STATE-PD-AIR FILTERS PO 304968
10876 |FOREMOST PROMOTIONS $418.44 |FOREMOST-RESCUE-4FORUIFEFUNDS-STD FIRE OPEN HOUSE KIT PO 3167
10877 |FRAZIER TIRE AND AUTOMOTIVE $39.34 [ST-509-MOUNT & BALANCE R-REAR OUTSIDE PO 14465
10878 GALETON GLOVES AND SAFETY PRODUCTS $29.35 |{GALETON GLOVES-SHOP-GLOVES PO 14471 !
10879 GILLESPIE, HART, ALTIZER & WHITESELL, P.C, $3,938.08 |GILLESPIE HART-OCT '21 TOWN ATTY l
10880 | GRAINGER $147.92 |GRAINGER-EL-MARKING PAINT-SAFETY RED {12) PO EL700447
10881 {H.V. SPORTING GOODS, INC. $34,00 [HV SPORTING GOODS-PD-.38 SPECIAL AMMO PO 304975
10882 |HARRIS $310.11 |HARRIS-PAYFORCE 1/1/22-3/31/22 l
10883|HOME DEPOT PRO $751.90 |RESCUE-COVID-ELECTRSTATIC HANDHELD SPRAYER- PO R$3191
10884 | INDIAN TOWING SERVICE $85,00 |RESCUE #550-FROM RAVEN TO JERRY'S AUTO PO RS3185 |
10885 |J & W SCREEN PRINTING, INC, $87.00 1) & W SCREEN PRINTING-RESCUE-NAVY T SHIRTS PO RS3210 {
10886 | JAMES RIVER EQUIPMENT-TAZEWELL $151.95 |JAMES RIVER EQUIP-WWTP-SEAL FOR JD MOWER PO WW81549
10887 | IERRY'S AUTO SERVICE $720.92 |JERRY'S AUTO-RESCUE #555-FRONT/REAR SHOCKS/LABOR PO R53190
10888} KIDD TIRE AUTO PARTS $2,167.99 [KIDD TIRE-RESCUE #555-2 TIRES/M & B/ALIGNMENT PO RS3196
10883 | KUSTOM SIGNALS, INC. $131.00 |KUSTOM SIGNALS-PD-IN-CAR CAMERA MIC BATTERY MAINT PO 304982
10890 {LARRY HELTON $133.00 [LARRY HELTON-PD #48-TRACKED DOWN SHORT CIRCUIT, FUSE PO 304995
10831 [LOWE'S $751.71 |LOWE'S-ALL DEPTS-SUPPLIES & MATERIALS !
10882 [LUSK DISPOSAL SERVICE, INC. $2,459.94 {LUSK-WWTP/CVMC-OCT 21 HAUL SVC PO 81668 I
10893} MARKE. ISON $1,750.00 |MARK E. ISON-IT- NOV 2021 MONTHLY IT SUPPORT/TRAVEL
10894 {MCCLURE CONCRETE PRODUCTS, INC. $402.00 |MCCLURE-ST-TANDANO MANTIS-2 YDS CONCRETE
10895 |NEUTRON INDUSTRIES $129.72 |NEUTRON IND-RESCUE-COVID PPE FUNDS-SURFACE DEFENSE WIPES PO RS3198
10896 | NORTHERN SAFETY CO,, INC. $74.01 |NORTHERN SAFETY-ST/SANT-FOAM CUPS, (12) SAFETY GLASSES PO 14449
10897 10LD DOMINION SLUSH PUPPIE $336.00 {OLD DOMINION SLUSH PUPPIE-REC-CONCESSION PO RP2788
10898 |OUTDOOR COUNTRY $49.98 jOUTDOOR COUNTRY-FIRE-CHAINS FOR SAWS PO F2023
10899 | PACE ANALYTICAL SERVICES, LLC $204.80 |PACE ANALYTICAL-WTP/WWTP-SEPT 2021 SAMPLES
10900 | PENGUIN MANAGEMENT, INC. $774.00 |PENGUIN MGMT-FIRE/RESCUE-6 MOS OF CAPTAIN PLAN PO RS3212
10901 | PRIORITY MEDICAL CLAIMS, INC. $3,583,62 [PMC-RESCUE-OCT 2021 COLLECTIONS [
10902 | RAVEN SUPER MARKET $16.05 |RAVEN SUPER MKT-WWTP-SANDPAPER/SANDCLOTH/PERMATEX PO 81667
10903 {RICHLANDS FARM BUREAU $597.92 |RLDS FARM BUREAU-ALL DEPTS-SUPPLIES & MATERIALS ]
10904 | ROBINSON AUTO PARTS $17.67 |ROBINSON AUTO-WWTP-BELT, GLUE PO 81666 ]
10905 [ROBINSON FARMER COX ASSOCIATES, PLLC $23,000.00 |ROBINSON FARMER COX ASSOC-2021 AUDIT-INTERIM BILLING
10906 SOUTHERN SOFTWARE, INC, $7,566.00 [SOUTHERN SOFTWARE-PD-RENEWAL SUPPORT FEE CAD 24/7 PO 304962
10907 { SPECIAL EFFECTS EMBROIDERY $144.00 |SPECIAL EFFECTS-RESCUE-12 CAPS EMBROID PO R$3199
10908 | SPECTRUM BUSINESS $39,94 |SPECTRUM-WWTP-580 INDIAN CREEK RD
10809 |STATE ELECTRIC SUPPLY COMPANY $8,517.16 |ST LIGHTING-EL/WTP/WWTP HARDWARE/SUPPORT PO EL700443
10910[STRYKER MEDICAL $834.43 |STRYKER MEDICAL-RESCUE POWER COT LOAD SYSTEM PO R$3159
10911 TEEN VENTURE . $98.37 |TEEN VENTURE-OCT 2021-DONATIONS COLLECTED
10912{THI $1,021.40 |THI-SANT #630-TAILGATE CYL REPAIR PO 14470 l
10913 {THOMPSON & LITTON, INC, $5,500.00 [TN HALL-DRIVE UP STATION-CONSULTING THRU 10/15/21
10914 | TRACTOR SUPPLY COMPANY $212.00 [LINES-T ELSWICK/S CARVER BOOTS PO 183533
10915 |[TRUCKPRO, LLC $88.66 |TRUCKPRO-ST-#622-ADAPTER, #14 THREAD SEA PO 14461
10916 | ULTRA PETROLEUM $18,272.10 |ULTRA PETROLEUM-ALL DEPTS-FUEL I
10917 |USABLUEBOOK $774.63 |WWTP-ELECTRODE/SCISSORS/GLASS FIBER FILTER/GALV SENSOR PO WW81658
10918 USALCO $7,660.80 [USALCO-WTP-DELPAC 2020 PO WTP 005
10919 jVANCE GRAPHICS $232.00 |VANCE GRAPHICS-BUSINESS CARDS, 7 VETERAN BANNERS PO CA1057
10920 |VERIZON $466.39 |VERIZON-REC/FIRE/PD |
10921 [VERSALIFT NORTH CAROLINA LLC $2,311.43 IVERSALIFT-EL-#955/960/970/980 TESTING, FILTERS, LABOR PO EL93602
10922 JVIRGINIA UTILITY PROTECTION SERVICE, INC. $18.90 JVUPS-OCT '21 -18 TRANSMISSIONS I
10923 |W-L CONSTRUCTION & PAVING, INC. $329.70 [W-L CONSTRUCTION-$T-4.08 TON ASPHALT
10924 | WYTHEVILLE OFFICE SUPPLY, INC. $320.74 |WYTHEVILLE OFFICE-PD-TONER CARTS PO 304993
10925 | ZEP SALES & SERVICE $273.95 |ZEP SALES-BATHROOM SPRAY-ST/SANT/EL/LINES PO 14477
10926 |20LL DATA SYSTEMS $298.00 {70t DATA SYSTEMS-RESCUE-OCT 2021 EMS CHARTS PO R$3188
B Total Checks: $148,292.10
AMP (SEPT '21) $245,747.13
MORGAN STANLEY (SEPT'21) $48,146.64
ANTHEM BLUE CROSS BLUE SHIELD (SEPT 21} $102,603.00
VRS {AUG '21) ) $70,030.50
B GRAND TOTAL $614,819.37







Town of Richlands
PAID CHECKS REPORT
10/13/2021 to 11/4/2021

Checki#t |Paid To Description Check Date  |Amount
10784 | AMIAZON CAPITAL SERVICES, INC, RESCUE-PPE, INK CARTS, TN HALL-FACE MASKS, BUS CERT, PD-BATTERIES 10/15/2021 $675.68
10785 ]AMERIGAS -7089 AMERIGAS-WWTP-BOILER GAS 93.7 GALS PROPANE 10/15/2021 $392.26
10786 |ARMY & NAVY STORE ARMY NAVY STORE-EL-ROBERTS, CORDLE NEWBERRY BOOT ALLOWANCE YRLY | 10/15/2021 $318.00
10787|DYE, BRENNAN FRANKLIN Utility Refund for 303034.00 91 10/15/2021 $17.74
10788 [FARMER, ESTATE OF MAUDIE M Utility Refund for 605652.00 98 10/15/2021 $64.18
107891 FIRST COMMUNITY BANK TN HALL-COPY PAPER, PD-EXTRADITION FUEL, EXP, RESCUE-TRAINING 10/15/2021 $799.80
10790 |GILLESPIE, HART, ALTIZER & WHITESELL, P.C. GILLESP{E-HART-SEPT 2021 TN ATTY FEES 10/15/2021| $4,009.56
10791 HEATHER PERRY HEATHER PERRY-CELL PHONE ALLOW-AUG, SEPT 2021 10/15/2021 $40.00
10792 [HERNDON, MATTHEW TIMMY Utility Refund for 909934.00 96 10/15/2021 $16.62
10793 [ITRON INC. ITRON-EL-CREDIT-OVER PMT HARDWARE/SOFTWARE MAINT ANNUAL 10/15/2021 $333.20
10794 {KEEN, JESSICA RENEE Utility Refund for 707844.00 97 10/15/2021 $100.97
10795 [KIDD TIRE AUTO PARTS KIDD TIRE-SANT #625-2 TIRES/MOUNT/NO BAL 10/15/2021 $972.44
10796 LEXISNEXIS RISK SOLUTIONS LEXISNEXIS-DTF-SEPT 21 CONTRACT FEE, 1 EMAIL SEARCH PO 304965 10/15/2021 $35.40
10797 |[MITCHELL, CAMERON C Utility Refund for 11012072.00 97 10/15/2021 $92.37
10798 | TREASURER OF VA-DIV. UNCLAIMED PROPERTY |TREAS OF VA-SPARKS, JEFFERY PHILLIP ORG CK 10.17.19 UNCLAIMED CK #60111 10/15/2021 $276.48
10799 |VERIZON VERIZON-SCHOOL TANK VAULT-2026, DTF SEC LINES, WTP TELEMETRY 10/15/2021 $241.95
10800|VERIZON WIRELESS VERIZON WIRELESS-PD/DTF/TN HALL/RESCUE/W/S/E CELL PHONES 10/15/2021} $1,156.42
10801 {CRAB ORCHARD VETERINARY SVCS, INC. CRAB ORCHARD VET SVCS-PD-CFS #21-05705 PO 304570 10/19/2021 $462.40
10802 [HUNTER BROWN HUNTER BORWN-PD-PHOTO BATTERY FOR SCOPE 10/19/2021 $13.66
10803 | LEAF. LEAF-PD-COPIER C287 RENT/INS PO 304973 10/19/2021 $111.04
10804 | LUSK DISPOSAL SERVICE, INC. LUSK-WWTP-SEPT 21 HAUL SVC PO 81548 10/19/2021; $1,000.00
10805 |MILLARD MCGHEE MILLARD MCGHEE-PD-#48-HEAD LIGHT FOR DURANGO 10/19/2021 $21.79
10806 | POSTMASTER POSTMASTER-OCT'21 DELINQ UT BILLS 10/19/2021 $284.20
10807 [RICOH USA INC. RICOH-PD-SQ RM/DISPATCH-COPIER-B/W, COLOR COPIES PO 304971 10/19/2021 $76.21
10808 SPECTRUM BUSINESS SPECTRUM-REC PARK/ACCESS CHANNEL-INTERNET SVC 10/19/2021 $135.74
10809 [VERIZON VERIZON-DTF-2647/2649 PO 304972 10/19/2021 $71.18
10810 WYTHEVILLE OFFICE SUPPLY, INC, WYTHEVILLE OFFICE-DTF-HIDTA GRANT-PRINTER/TONER PO 304978 10/19/2021 $344,33
10811 BRITTANY N. DYE B DYE-PD-EXTRADITION GREENVILLE SC 10.27.21 PO 304989 10/26/2021 $74.75
10812 | MATTHEW PUCKETT MATTHEW PUCKETT-PD-EXTRADITION GREENVILLE SC PO 304990 10/26/2021 $24.75
10813 {SOUTHWEST VA EMS COUNCIL INC SWVA EMS COUNCIL-RESCUE-BRIAN LOWE RECERT ACLS/PALS CARDS PO RS32(] 10/26/2021 $36.00
10814 |[APPALACHIAN POWER AEP-WWTP/LINES/ST/FIRE/RESCUE 10/27/2021 $911,32
10815|CASTILLO, PROBO Utility Refund for 13020816.00 98 10/27/2021 $112.76
10816} CLERK, CIRCUIT COURT OF TAZEWELL COUNTY  |CLERK, CCTC-RAVEN DORAN LIFT STATION CoT-TMP #104 A 0062 10/27/2021 $139.00
10817 |DELL MARKETING L.P. DELL-PD-BENDER-DELL OPTIPLEX XE3 TOWER, 27 MONITOR PO 304890 10/27/2021} $1,586.50
10818 |EARL COLE INC. DBA-THE VOICE PD/SANT/PUBLIC NOTICE/RESCUE/H/R-PAYROLL/PFP-LIBRARY 10/27/2021 $511.50
108191 FRANK DORTON F DORTON-MICROPHONE CABLE FOR COUNCIL PODIUM PO IT5051 10/27/2021 $19.99
10820|KEEN, SHANNON LEE Utllity Refund for 706710.00 94 10/27/2021 $9.57
10821 {KEITH REYNOLDS K REYNOLDS-FIRE-WATER, TOILET PAPER PO F2021 10/27/2021 $31.71
10822 [ NATIONAL BANK NATIONAL BANK-INTEREST PAYMENT ON LOC 39477 10/27/2021] $2,959.21
10823 |OSBORNE, REGINA YVONNE Utility Refund for 808579.00 96 10/27/2021 $108.00
10824 | PACE ANALYTICAL SERVICES, LLC PACE-WTP-INORGANIC PKG VA PO WTP0O4 10/27/2021 $159.10
10825 POINT BROADBAND POINT BROADBAND-DTF-INTERNET SVC PO 304986 10/27/2021 $69.95
10826 | RICHLANDS POOL & SPA Utility Refund for 1403794.00 96 10/27/2021 539,99
10827 |RICOH USA INC, RICOH-PD-SQ RM/DISPATCH COPIERS-LEASE PMTS PO 304890 10/27/2021 $183.06
10828 |RICOH USA, INC. RICOH USA-FIN OFFICE-RENT, MAINT, ADDITIONAL IMAGES PO 6059 10/27/2021| $1,026.91
10829{RIFE, SCOTT S Utility Refund for 202024.00 98 10/27/2021 $201.40
10830 |{ROGERS, TERESA LYNN Utility Refund for 404704.00 96 10/27/2021 $257.33
10831 |SKEENS, MARY F Utility Refund for 808816.00 98 10/27/2021 $133,27
10832 |SPECTRUM BUSINESS SPECTRUM-WWTP-385 SCOTCH ROAD 10/27/2021 $54.93
10833 |STEVENS, RACHEL VICTORIA Utility Refund for 12012758.00 96 10/27/2021 $17.56
10834 | TUGGLE, CHRISTIAN BLAKE Utility Refund for 707814.00 95 10/27/2021 $161,18
10835 [VERIZON VERIZON-2189-FAX LINE-TN HALL/FIRE/RESCUE 10/27/2021 $96.58
10836 MULLINS, VIRGINIA LILLIAN Utility Refund for 17024100.00 95 10/27/2021 595.00
10837|RAY, BRENDA Utility Refund for 9010120.00 97 10/27/2021 $27.71
10838 {JERRY VENCILL JERRY VENCILL-REC-HAUNTED TRAIL SPEAKER 10/27/2021 $150.00
10839 | PROFESSIONAL MAIL SERVICES, INC. PMSI-POSTAGE FOR PERSONAL PROPERTY TAXES 11/1/2021] $2,033.78
10840|PROFESSIONAL MAIL SERVICES, INC. PMSI-NOV 21 COMMERCIAL BILLS-PRINTING 11/1/2021 $72.20
10841 TREASURER TAZEWELL COUNTY TREAS TAZ CO-SEPT 2021 CONS UT TAX COLLECTED 11/3/2021 $98.37
10842 |BRADLEY BEAVERS BRAD BEAVERS-WTP-SAM'S-TP,PAPER TOWELS, COFFEE, TRASH BAGS PO WTPO,  11/4/2021 $86.03
10843 | CHRISTOPHER MICALE, TRUSTEE GARNISHMENT 11/4/2021 $634.28
10844 |EARL COLE INC. DBA-THE VOICE THE VOICE-PUBLIC HEARING 9.14,21 CHARTER PO 6154A/RFP-LIBRARY 11/4/2021 $378.00
10845 LEAF LEAF-PD-COPIER-RECORDS LEASE, INS PO 304999 11/4/2021 $111.04
10846 | POSTMASTER POSTMASTER-R/E BILLS 2021-POSTAGE 11/4/2021] $1,255.75
] 10847 | PROFESSIONAL MAIL SERVICES, INC. PMSI-NOV 21 RESIDENTIAL BILLS-PRINTING 11/4/2021 $333.12
B 10848 |RICHLANDS GARDEN CLUB RLDS GARDEN CLUB-2021 ORN PURCHASE W/ CC-M GILLESPIE 11/4/2021 $20.00
10849 | TAZEWELL CO PUBLIC SERVICE AUTHORITY TAZ CO PSA-WWTP/LIFT STATION 11/4/2021 $39.74
10850| TOWN OF RICHLANDS P/R DED- UTHITIES 11/4/2021 $233.89
10851| TOWN OF RICHLANDS P/R DED- UTILITIES 11/4/2021 $300.00
Total Checks: _ $26,858.85
B GRAND TOTAL $26,858.85







